
Mrs J Wallace
Head of Paid Service
Torridge District Council
Riverbank House
Bideford
Devon
EX39 2QG

DX 53606 BIDEFORD
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700

Date: 14 February 2017

MEETING OF EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

On: Wednesday 22 February 2017 At: 2.00 pm

Venue: Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS

NOTICE OF MEETING

To: Councillor S Inch (Chair)
Councillor P Pennington (Vice-Chair)
Councillors: R Darch, A Eastman, T Johns, I Parker, A Whittle, A Dart and 
A Boyle

Non elected Members: Mr P Topham

Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting

AGENDA
PART I - (OPEN SESSION)

1.  Apologies For Absence From The Meeting 
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting.

2.  Minutes (Pages 3 - 7)
Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 January 2017.

3.  Action List (Pages 8 - 9)

4.  Declaration Of Interests 
Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of their 
interest when the item is considered. 



- 2 -

5.  Agreement Of Agenda Items Part I and II 

6.  Urgent Matters Brought Forward With the Permission Of The Chair 

7.  AONB 
To receive a presentation by Jenny Carey-Wood, North Devon Coast Areas of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty.

8.  CCG (Pages 10 - 110)
To review, discuss and respond to the letter from Tim Burke, CCG.

9.  SWW (Pages 111 - 112)
To discuss and note letter from SWW.

10.  Tourist Information Groups (Pages 113 - 123)
To receive an update from the Commercial & Leisure Services Manager.

11.  Grant Review 
To receive an update from the Commercial & Leisure Services Manager.

12.  Health, Wellbeing & Social Care (Standing item) 

13.  Consideration Of The Forward Plan 2016/17 (Pages 124 - 125)

14.  Exclusion Of The Public 
The Chair to move:- 
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

Meeting Organiser: Mary Richards

Centre for Public Scrutiny – website            http://www.cfps.org.uk/

http://www.cfps.org.uk/


1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY MEETING

Town Hall

Wednesday, 11 January 2017 - 6.00 pm

PRESENT Councillor S Inch (Chair)
Councillors P Pennington, R Darch, A Eastman, T Johns, 
I Parker, A Whittle, A Dart and A Boyle

Non Elected Representatives: Mr P Topham

ALSO PRESENT Councillor P Hackett

Steve Boucher, South Western Ambulance Service Trust
Colin Bolsom, South Western Ambulance Service Trust
Vicki Rowe, Citizens Advice Bureau

S Kearney - Commercial & Leisure Services Manager
M Richards – Democratic Services

46.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE FROM THE MEETING 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Boundy.

47.   MINUTES 

It was proposed by Councillor S Inch, seconded by Councillor Johns and –

Resolved:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 9 November 2016 be agreed and signed 
as a correct record.

(Vote: For 6, Abstentions 4 )

48.   ACTION LIST 

The action list was reviewed and following updates noted:

Minute no. 14, 17/08/16 - Locality Officer, Torrington

The Commercial & Leisure Services Manager advised that currently there was no 
Locality Lead for Torrington.  However, Devon County Council  was reviewing the 
role of the Locality Leads and the role would be filled.  In the meantime  Ali Boyd or 
David Slocombe were covering.

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2

Minute No. 32 - Holsworthy Transport; S.106 Agreement

Committee Members were informed that the S.106 was associated with the Tesco 
planning application which never proceeded.  Therefore, monies were not 
forthcoming.  It was uncertain whether Holsworthy Transport had been informed - 
the Commercial & Leisure Services Manager to follow up.

49.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

Members were reminded that declarations of interest should be made as and when 
the specific agenda item to which they related was under discussion.

50.   AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II 

There were no Part II items.

51.   URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 
THE CHAIR 

The Chair notified Members that North Devon Council had invited Torridge District 
Council to attend a Joint Special Meeting about the next round of NHS review 
decisions. 
  
The date of the meeting had yet to be determined but would probably take place in 
March and would be opened up to Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Members also.

52.   AMBULANCE RESPONSE TIMES (SWAST) 

The Chair welcomed Steve Boucher, Head Of Operations for the West Division and 
Colin Bolsom, Operations Manager for ambulance services across North Devon.

An overview was given of the services provided by the South Western Ambulance 
Service, the resources available and the geographic area covered.

There were 7 ambulance stations across the region, with control rooms in Exeter 
and Bristol.

The geographical area was mainly rural but did include urban areas such as Bristol, 
Plymouth, Exeter, Bath, Swindon, Gloucester, Bournemouth and Poole.  North 
Devon constituted one of the largest regions within SWAST.

The 999 emergency system, the NHS Pathway triage procedure and categories 
were explained.  Approximately 3000 calls were received a day.  Between 10% and 
15% of all emergency 999 calls were managed over the phone and approximately 
40% of the remaining calls would not result in a hospital visit.

Details were given about:

Page 4



3

 The vehicle fleet and crews – at any one time on a shift, 16 ambulances 
(both double crew and single car crew)  would be in operation, answering 
approximately 100 emergency calls a day.

 Community Responders who were volunteers.
 The work with other organisations to provide defibrillators.

The operational model was described and it was noted that a review of resources 
was in progress.  The need for more conveying ambulances was acknowledged.

Many questions were raised and the following supplementary information was 
provided in response:

 The Staff who operated the Air Ambulance were employed by SWAST  but 
the helicopters and equipment were funded by the Devon Air Ambulance 
Trust.

 The ratio of single to double crew ambulances was stated to be 85/15 but 
the future plan would be 70/30.

 The status plan dictated the positioning of ambulances and was based on 
historical analysis and experience indicating where incidents were most 
likely to occur.  There were procedures in place to ensure ambulances got 
back to the best location as soon as possible.

 The BASICS Scheme provided a network of volunteer doctors across he 
region with specialised training in the emergency management of trauma 
and medical conditions outside hospital. They responded to incidents at the 
request of ambulance control. 

 The 3 main standing bays in the Bideford area were at Atlantic Village, 
Bideford Quay and Northam.

 The need to train more people on the use of defibrillators was acknowledged 
and news was relayed of a national campaign to roll out resuscitation 
training through schools.  There was also the 999 Academy based at Petroc 
College which aimed not only to provide individuals with knowledge and 
skills but also to raise awareness and to educate about careers within one of 
the emergency services.

 Funding levels were set by the Commissioners and were based on the 
previous year, generally incorporating a 4% uplift.  Naturally, everybody 
would like more money, however, it was felt there was sufficient provision to 
continue to provide the current level of service but if there were any major 
changes such as, for example, closure of major units/hospitals, SWAST 
would have no hesitation in talking through additional needs with the 
Commissioners.

 Triage staff were not clinicians but had some clinical knowledge.  All went 
through a 10-12 week training course.

Page 5



4

 The NHS Sustainability and Transformations Plans provided the plan for 
future development of and improvements to SWAST.

 The Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) would be able to provide more 
detail on hospital and community NHS services and it was recommended 
they be invited to a future meeting of the External Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

 There was a 15 minute window to transfer the patient from the ambulance 
trolley to the hospital trolley and to effect a handover to the hospital staff.  On 
16 January a 2 week programme would commence where the focus would 
be on improving hospital time frames, including clearing ambulance crews.

The Chair thanked Steve and Colin their informative presentation and for the 
excellent service SWAST provide.

53.   CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAU 

The Chair welcomed Vicki Rowe, Citizens Advice Bureau, Chief Executive of the 
Torridge, North, Mid & West Devon Citizens Advice Bureau.

Vicki gave a presentation on how the organisation operated, the type of advice 
required, case statistics and trends.  Information was provided on how the funding 
from Torridge District Council was spent and how the services offered by the 
Citizens’ Advice Bureau benefited Torridge District Council and the public.

Torridge, North, Mid and West Devon Citizens Advice (TNMWD) was a local 
charity, with 21 volunteers, who provided free, independent and confidential advice 
on all subjects.  A huge increase in demand had been seen over the previous 6 
months, with trends showing that, although more people were working, they were 
not earning enough to make ends meet.  A surge in people seeking advice in 
respect of disability allowance had been identified as Torridge and North Devon fell 
within the post code areas for people to receive Personal Independence Payment 
(PIP) which replaces Disability Living Allowance.

A link to a video clip would be sent to External O&S Committee Members.

Vicki provided answers to Members’ questions and offered to provide breakdowns 
of statistics if required.  Ideas for future improvements to the Service were aired 
and Vicki confirmed lots of initiatives were being explored, such as a mobile unit 
and provision of a service from Doctors’ surgeries.

Reference was made to the recent report by Virginia Pearson, DCC Director of 
Public Health, in which the link between deprivation and life expectancy was 
examined.  Vicki spoke about resources for people who were unable to get to a 
CAB centre.  These included the CAB’s home service and facilities offered by other 
charities such as Living Options, Devon and Macmillan Cancer Support.

Page 6



5

The Chair thanked Vicki for her attendance and for the Service provided by the 
CAB .

54.   HEALTH, WELLBEING & SOCIAL CARE  (STANDING ITEM) 

There were no updates.

55.   EXTERNAL GRANTS WORKING GROUP (STANDING ITEM) 

The Commercial & Leisure Services Manager confirmed that, following consultation 
with the External and Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committees, it was 
recommended there would be no changes to the Grants budget.

56.   CONSIDERATION OF THE FORWARD PLAN 2016/17 

The Commercial & Leisure Services Manager advised that the ANOB had 
confirmed they would attend the meeting on 15 February.

Other items for the next meeting:

 ND+
 Tourist Information Groups
 Grant Review

The meeting commenced at 6 pm and closed at 8.09 pm.

Chair: Date:

Page 7



ACTION LIST
Overview & Scrutiny (External) Committee – 11 January 2017

Minute
No.

Raised by Action By Who Date Contacted Completed

Minute 
no. 14, 
17/08/16

Vice Chair 17/8/16  - DCC Locality Officers -  to 
ascertain from Devon County Council 
the name of the Locality Officer for 
Torrington and to acquire a job 
description for Locality Officers

09/11/2016 – Senior Solicitor to enquire 
whether there is a Locality Officer for 
Torrington

11/01/2017 – There is currently no 
Locality Officer for Torrington.  To be 
covered by Ali Boyd and David 
Slocombe.

Head Of Paid 
Service

Senior Solicitor

Email sent to HOPS 
19/09/2016
01/11/2016 –information still 
not available

17/11/2016 – e-mail sent to 
Senior Solicitor

Completed

Minute 
No. 32 

Mr 
Topham

Holsworthy Transport – Mr Topham 
noted that the S106 Agreement had still 
not been addressed.  

11/01/17 - The S.106 monies had been 
associated with the Tesco planning 
application and were no longer 
applicable as the application had not 
proceeded.  However, this needed to be 
confirmed to Holsworthy Transport if this 
had not already been done.

Senior Solicitor

Commercial & 
Leisure Services 
Manager

28.11.16 – Email sent to 
Senior Solicitor

01/02/2017 – e-mail sent to  
Commercial & Leisure 
Services Manager

Minute 
No. 52

Vicki 
Rowe, 
CAB

11/01/17 - link to a video clip would be 
sent to External O&S Committee 
Members

Dem Services 13/01/2017 - e-mail sent to 
Committee Members

Completed

Chair Papers from Dr Tim Burke in response Dem Services 02/02/2017 – e-mailed to all Completed

P
age 8

A
genda Item

 3



to Senior Solicitor’s letter re NHS. O&S Ext Committee 
Members

P
age 9



 
Chair:  Dr Tim Burke 

Chief Officer:  Rebecca Harriott 
 

Newcourt House, Newcourt Drive, Old Rydon Lane, Exeter, EX2 7JQ 
Tel. 01392 205205 

www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk 

                                   

  
 

 

 

11 January 2017 

 

Dear Mr Hollis, 

 

Thank you for your letter on behalf of Torridge District Council’s Overview and 

Scrutiny (External) Committee.  

I need to highlight that the current Your Future Care (YFC) consultation is 

predominantly focused on future inpatient arrangements in the Eastern Locality of 

the CCG and the proposed delivery of a new model of integrated care in that area. 

Whilst we are engaging throughout the CCG area on the new model of care, in this 

context YFC does not make any specific proposals in relation to health care services 

in North Devon and Torridge. 

Future health services in North Devon are however part of the Wider Devon 

Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP), which is setting out ambitious plans to 

improve health and care services for people across Devon in a way that is clinically 

and financially sustainable 

Health and care organisations as well as local authorities across Devon have been 

working together to create the shared five-year vision to meet the increasing health 

and care needs of the population - while ensuring services are sustainable and 

affordable. 

The STP provides the framework within which detailed proposals for how services 

across Devon will develop between now and 2020/21. 

A key theme throughout the STP is an increased focus on preventing ill health and 

promoting peoples’ independence through the provision of more joined up services 

in or closer to peoples’ homes. 

 Seven priority areas have been identified as key programmes of work: 

·         Ill health prevention and early intervention 

Page 10

Agenda Item 8

http://www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk/


 
Chair:  Dr Tim Burke 

Chief Officer:  Rebecca Harriott 
 

Newcourt House, Newcourt Drive, Old Rydon Lane, Exeter, EX2 7JQ 
Tel. 01392 205205 

www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk 

·         Integrated care model 

·         Primary care 

·         Mental health and learning disabilities 

·         Acute hospital and specialist services 

·         Increasing service productivity. 

·         Children and young people 

The strategy to achieve this is set out in our published STP, but there remain a 

number of decisions still to be made which will be subject to rigorous engagement 

and, where required, formal consultation processes. We look forward to your full and 

active participation in these processes so that we can collectively achieve the very 

best outcomes we can for our population. 

The STP framework document is to be presented to all partner organisation boards 

or equivalent bodies for consideration and endorsement. This process has already 

begun and is planned to conclude over the next six to eight weeks. Following this, 

the organisations involved will then undertake an engagement exercise involving 

citizens, patients, service users, their representatives and voluntary sector groups. 

Feedback will further help shape the plans. The NHS and its partners will then use 

the STP framework to develop proposals to improve care. 

For clarification, it must be noted that the STP is a dynamic, developing framework 

and no discrete proposals have yet made been made relating to the priorities that 

are highlighted on page 10 of the STP. 

I have attached with this email a copy of the latest STP document, the STP Briefing 

document, the Acute Services Review briefing document, and the Case for Change 

document. If they have not already received and read them, please feel free to 

circulate these attachments to the members of the committee. 

I have addressed your 10 questions below, but if you have further questions 

following my response please do not hesitate to contact me. 

 

1.  What impact will proposed service changes have on resident's life 

expectancy (in relation to the Torridge District)? 

Services in Devon must change in order to become clinically and financially 

sustainable, and the key reasons for this are highlighted in the case for change 

published in February 2016. There is a difference of 15 years in life expectancy 

Page 11

http://www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk/


 
Chair:  Dr Tim Burke 

Chief Officer:  Rebecca Harriott 
 

Newcourt House, Newcourt Drive, Old Rydon Lane, Exeter, EX2 7JQ 
Tel. 01392 205205 

www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk 

across wider Devon and differences in health outcomes – or ‘health inequalities’. The 

emerging Wider Devon Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) will highlight 

proposals to tackle this crucial issue. 

The integrated care proposals would not be anticipated to materially impact on 

overall life expectancy as they only relate to a small component of the health and 

care system. We do however expect better outcomes for patients across all areas of 

Devon through the new model of care and this will improve individuals’ experience of 

living with and managing their health issues. 

 

2. What is being done to address health inequalities? 

The Case for Change document and the STP describe the challenge of, and 

highlight the emerging proposals that are focused on addressing health inequalities. 

There is substantial information on this issue in both documents, so rather than 

extract sections, the full documents have been attached to this email.  

 

3. If a service is significantly changed or shut down, what is proposed to 

replace it? 

Where there are proposals to significantly change or close any service then the 

clearly defined requirements of formal consultation placed on commissioners would 

apply and the CCG would undertake an appropriate process such as the recent Your 

Future Care consultation.  

Your Future Care consults on the potential delivery of a new model of integrated 

care and the potential reduction of inpatient beds in community hospitals in the 

Eastern Locality and it seemed appropriate in this context to detail some background 

to this by way of illustration of the CCG approach.  

By consolidating our community hospital inpatient services and shifting some of the 

funding we currently spend on beds into better services for people in our 

communities, we have determined we can provide safe alternatives to hospital and 

make sure they are always available for patients who are not acutely unwell. 

Multidisciplinary teams in the community, working alongside social care 

professionals, will be able to provide a more proactive, personalised care service.   

The model has three key aspects to it: 

• Comprehensive assessment – this identifies people who are frail or becoming 

frail, and therefore are at risk of being admitted to hospital, and puts a care plan in 

Page 12

http://www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk/


 
Chair:  Dr Tim Burke 

Chief Officer:  Rebecca Harriott 
 

Newcourt House, Newcourt Drive, Old Rydon Lane, Exeter, EX2 7JQ 
Tel. 01392 205205 

www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk 

place for them, owned by the individual, which sets out possible routes for escalating 

care when needed. 

• Single point of access – when additional support is needed, a single point of 

access, connected to a comprehensive care at home service, will help people to 

remain at home with support, rather than being admitted to hospital. 

• Rapid response (care at home) – When someone does need to go to hospital 

they will be helped to leave as soon as it is clinically safe to do so, with additional 

support provided at home including health and care workers delivering rehabilitation 

alongside traditional care. 

The aim is to join up care more effectively across all parts of Devon, so that people 

are not being sent to hospital just because the relevant services are not available to 

safely keep them at home. Implementing these changes means there will be less 

need for community hospital beds and the enhanced service in the community will 

improve the health outcomes for patients, given what we know about the potential 

detrimental effects of unnecessary and / or prolonged hospitalisation. 

Health services in North Devon, which are already operating on a more integrated 

basis, are not affected by the proposed changes as part of the Your Future Care 

consultation.  

 

4. Are there any identified gaps in the present service provision? e.g. mental 

health 

We are undertaking a current (we are mapping all of our community resources by 

locality-area) position analysis across all localities of the CCG to ensure that Out of 

Hospital services can be in place as required to deliver the new components of the 

model of care. This will ensure that we address any gaps or inequity in current 

provision, recognising that different areas start from differing positions in terms of 

community based teams, including mental health. We are not currently aware of any 

significant service provision gaps in the Torridge area. 

 

5. Is there a record of 'unmet need' when an individual has either a health or 

social care assessment?  

Whenever a health or social care assessment is undertaken the professional will 

make a judgement around the needs of the individual - sometimes this can identify 

needs that have previously not been met which would be recorded. This is 

Page 13

http://www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk/


 
Chair:  Dr Tim Burke 

Chief Officer:  Rebecca Harriott 
 

Newcourt House, Newcourt Drive, Old Rydon Lane, Exeter, EX2 7JQ 
Tel. 01392 205205 

www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk 

undertaken on a case by case basis. The professionals will then agree a care plan to 

address those needs in collaboration with the patient. 

 

6. Are there clear, simple written guides available to all service users of the 

pathways encountered when receiving either health or social care? 

There are many different components of Health and Social Care and some of these 

services have more formal pathways than others with clear guidelines for 

professionals and information for service users detailing service intentions and 

pathways. Additionally there are written, online and telephone based information 

systems operated by local care providers (for example the patient information 

webpage from North Devon Healthcare Trust) and nationally people can get 

information via for example NHS Choices.   

As a CCG we require our service providers to provide their own information about 

their services using clear, simple language that adheres to the Equality Act. All 

information managed by individual providers must be in line with the NHS England 

Accessible Information Standard.  

For more generic care such as district nursing or primary care, services can cover a 

very broad remit where there will be specific reference to potentially a number of 

pathways but also the ability to act on professional assessment so that care co-

ordination is appropriate. All relevant professionals are expected to work within their 

scope of practice and to the specifications that are set for their services providing 

appropriate information and signposting to service users. 

 

7. Given the extent of unnecessary bed occupation in acute hospital treatment 

what is being done to produce a seamless service between health and social 

care to enable effective discharge? 

The levels of bed occupancy vary significantly across Devon and are also sensitive 

to seasonal pressures. A clear objective of the new model of care and focus on Out 

of Hospital Care is to address over dependency on bed based care and to lower the 

number of delays and extended lengths of stay for patients in Hospital. The new 

model of care with joined up teams across community based health and social care 

will address the issue of unnecessary admissions and, where admission for acute 

care is required, facilitate discharge at the earliest opportunity.   

 

Page 14

http://www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk/
http://www.northdevonhealth.nhs.uk/patient-information/
http://www.northdevonhealth.nhs.uk/patient-information/
http://www.nhs.uk/pages/home.aspx
https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/accessibleinfo/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/accessibleinfo/


 
Chair:  Dr Tim Burke 

Chief Officer:  Rebecca Harriott 
 

Newcourt House, Newcourt Drive, Old Rydon Lane, Exeter, EX2 7JQ 
Tel. 01392 205205 

www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk 

8.  Is there a role for community leaders (e.g. District Councillors) to 

encourage residents to consider future health and social care needs prior to 

when services are needed? 

Yes, most definitely. We want to encourage all communities to build on community 

resilience and in particular work with public facing services to identify need and 

provide earlier preventative intervention. A key part of our new model of care is to 

provide better comprehensive assessment to identify future needs and provide 

signposting to relevant community support for our residents and we do believe that 

there are broader components of the community that can be developed to support 

these objectives. We work closely with community leaders on local steering groups, 

and would value discussions with the council to explore how we can further engage. 

 

9. Is there enough being made of the third sector and voluntary sector to 

improve long term public health outcomes? E.g. walking groups, sitter 

services for carers, advice services in enabling vulnerable residents to 

maximise quality of life. 

The third sector and voluntary sector can play an important role in improving long 

term public health. NEW Devon CCG is committed, where appropriate, to work with 

providers and stakeholders, including those from the third and voluntary sectors to 

ensure the best outcomes possible. We would welcome opportunities to discuss any 

proposals brought forward by community groups, charities or other voluntary sector 

organisations. We have examples such as the developing Health and Wellbeing Hub 

in Budleigh Salterton or the Westbank provision based in Exminster which can 

provide templates or learning for other communities.     

 

10. How can effective outcomes be measured to ensure resources are used to 

achieve maximum effect? 

We have a wide range of measures of performance and quality in relation to the 

services that the CCG commissions, some of these being NHS Constitutional 

measures. We report regularly both locally at our Governing Body meetings and 

nationally to NHS England on the levels of service delivery that local providers are 

achieving. Additionally all providers gain feedback from service users on their 

experience of the care they receive via the Friends and Family Test reporting. I 

would also highlight other ways in which individuals can provide feedback directly to 

any provider or through the CCG – these can be accessed by clicking here.  

Page 15

http://www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-nhs-constitution-for-england
http://www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk/pals-and-complaints-team/100081


 
Chair:  Dr Tim Burke 

Chief Officer:  Rebecca Harriott 
 

Newcourt House, Newcourt Drive, Old Rydon Lane, Exeter, EX2 7JQ 
Tel. 01392 205205 

www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk 

We are aware that outcomes for individuals may not always be captured by the 

measures we report but we are developing an increased focus on what matters to 

individuals and the “I” statements on page 7 within the STP are very much as the 

heart of this.  

In relation to current proposals, for patients, the main impact of the new model of 

care will be to enable them to live more independently with fewer occasions of being 

admitted to hospital and stays that are reduced in length to the absolute minimum 

required for medical reasons. Delays in discharge returning to their own beds will be 

eliminated. A greater proportion of those who have been admitted to hospital will 

return to full functioning. 

As the new model of care is developed with communities and local clinicians specific 

impacts and improvements in outcomes will be measured. These ‘to be developed’ 

KPIs will form a fundamental part of the gateway process for implementation. They 

will include the national and local outcomes in line with the health and wellbeing 

strategy and CCG plans, as well as delivery in relation to the local system ‘I’ 

statements, developed jointly for health and social care across what is now the STP 

area, which set out the experiences individuals should be able to expect when using 

health and care services. 

There will also be specially identified Benefits Criteria and KPI’s for the new model 

so that the impact of the change is clear and clinicians, patients, carers and the 

public can be assured the new model once introduced is meeting patient needs and 

achieving quality, efficient and value for money services.  

I hope the above addresses the important issues you have raised. If you have further 

areas that it would be useful for your members to have information on please let me 

know. 

 

Yours Sincerely, 

 

 

Dr Tim Burke 

 

Chair  

Northern, Eastern and Western Devon Clinical Commissioning Group 

Newcourt House|Old Rydon Lane|Exeter|EX2 7JU 

 

Page 16

http://www.newdevonccg.nhs.uk/


   

 

 
 

Devon-wide STP briefing document 
03 November 2016 
 
Our purpose 
Health and Care organisations and Local Authorities across Devon have been 
working together to create our shared five-year vision for how we aim to meet the 
increasing health and care needs of our population whilst ensuring our services 
are sustainable and affordable. There is a compelling case for change, driven by 
demography and complexity, and we must plan for safe, sustainable and 
affordable health and care services, learning from best practice and latest 
evidence to develop new and innovative types of care.  
 
Health and social care partners in Devon (which includes Plymouth and Torbay), 
are united in a single ambition and shared purpose: to create a clinically, socially 
and financially sustainable health and care system that will improve the health, 
wellbeing and care of the populations we serve. 
 
Headline briefing points 

 Services in Devon are generally high-performing but must change in order 
to become clinically and financially sustainable in the longer-term. The key 
reasons for this have been well documented in the case for change have 
been published. 

 Health and social care organisations in Devon are working together, as 
part of a system, to address the challenges faced by Devon. This is 
something that the NHS embraces and a shared recognition that doing 
nothing is not an option.  
 

 The STP is a framework within which we will develop detailed proposals 
for how services across Devon will develop between now and 2020/21. 
 

 Seven priority areas have been identified as key programmes of work 
these are:  

o Prevention & early intervention 
o Integrated care model 
o Primary care 
o Mental health & learning disabilities 
o Acute hospital & specialist services 
o Productivity 
o Children & young people 

 

 Each programme will be supported by enabling work stream on workforce, 
states, communications and engagement and organisational development 
 
 

Page 17



   

 

 
 

 The document released today is the latest update and feedback from NHS 
England is expected. It will be presented to all partner organisation Boards 
or equivalent bodies for consideration and endorsement over the 6 to 8 
weeks. 
 

 Simon Stevens this week (03 November) announced investment of 
additional funding for Devon to support three of our STP priorities: cancer 
services, primary care and mental health. The funding will provide new, 
state of the art, linear accelerators (LINACs) to treat cancer patients at 
Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust and Royal Devon and 
Exeter NHS Foundation Trust; a new secure mental health services adult 
unit with up to 75 beds at a new hospital in Wellington, reducing the need 
for people to travel out of the South West region;  approval for 30 GP 
schemes in the South West, improving access to appointments, bringing 
improvements to premises and new IT infrastructure 
 

 Some of the work on the programmes contained in the STP commence 
prior to the development of this framework for example consultation is 
already taking place on proposals to change community services in South 
Devon & Torbay and East Devon.  The need for review some of our acute 
and specialist services was highlight in the New Devon Case for Change 
published in February this year. Torbay and South Devon has also 
highlighted a similar need. The services that will be included in the first 
phase of the reviews  that will commence this month are:  
 

o Stroke services (including hyper-acute and stroke rehabilitation). 
 

o Maternity (including consultant-led and midwife-led care), 
Paediatrics and Neonatology, to be reviewed together given their 
inter-dependency. 

 
o Urgent and Emergency services, focusing particularly on the acute 

hospital provision of accident and emergency and co-dependent 
services.  

 We will be undertaking engagement activities on the STP with a wide 
range of stakeholders including overview and scrutiny committees.  

 
 
 
 

Page 18



 

1 
 

 
 

Acute Services Review briefing document 
 
Five year plan for service transformation 
Health and Care organisations and Local Authorities across Devon have been working 
together to create our shared five-year vision for how we aim to meet the increasing health 
and care needs of our population whilst ensuring our services are sustainable and affordable. 
There is a compelling case for change, driven by demography and complexity, and we must 
plan for safe, sustainable and affordable health and care services, learning from best practice 
and latest evidence to develop new and innovative types of care.   
 
Work already underway 
A significant focus since March has been to work on a new model of care for integrated 
community services, and public consultations on proposed changes are now underway 
across Devon. In addition, we are also looking at a range of ways to improve our efficiency, 
such as by reducing our reliance on agency staff and how we can network or share services 
such as pathology and some of our support functions. 
 
Acute hospital services review 
We are also focused on improving our acute hospital care because the needs of our 
population are outstripping our capacity to meet these needs.  This gap in capacity means 
increasing waiting times for our patients and clinically we may not always meet standards for 
good care.  Some services are also experiencing workforce and other challenges which are 
making them unsustainable.  In short - we are failing to provide timely and high quality care in 
a range of acute hospital services, and we must change to become more efficient, effective 
and sustainable so we can deliver better care for the people of Devon.   
 
So a priority for Devon is a clinically led review of our acute hospital services, based on the 
following principles: 
 

 Improving the health of our population 

 Improving the quality of care delivery 

 Improving the experience of staff, so Devon can attract the workforce we need for our 

health and care system 

 Achieving better value by reducing the cost of care 

 
A set of criteria is proposed to guide each Service Review in the development of options for 
change, and these will be tested with our stakeholders and through our patient and public 
involvement (PPI) networks.  These criteria are: 
 

 Patient Safety 

 Service Quality, Patient Outcomes and proven clinical benefit 

 Access as measured by both waiting times and travel times  

 Service sustainability 

 Effective training and development of future clinicians  

 Cost effectiveness 

 Patient Choice 

 User Experience 

Page 19



 

2 
 

  
The first phase of these clinical reviews will include stroke services, and this review will start 
in mid-November and conclude in mid-January.  Two further reviews - maternity, paediatrics 
& neonatology, and urgent and emergency services - will start in December and conclude in 
March 2017.  
 
As well as these large scale reviews, a number of smaller services will be reviewed because 
they are currently facing particular difficulties in remaining sustainable and safe due to 
workforce and other challenges.  The most urgent of these ‘vulnerable’ services to be 
reviewed are Breast Services, ENT, Interventional Radiology, Histopathology, Neurology, 
Interventional Cardiology and Vascular Surgery. Due to necessity early work has started on 
neurology, vascular and ENT which needs to be extended to be Devon wide.  
  
The Clinical Lead overseeing the Acute Services Review programme on behalf of the Devon 
health and care system will be Dr Phil Hughes, Medical Director at Plymouth Hospitals Trust, 
and Mairead McAlinden, Chief Executive at Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust, 
will be the lead Chief Executive.   
 
Each service review will be led by senior medical leaders drawn from the provider and 
commissioning organisations across Devon, alongside a senior manager, and will draw on 
the knowledge of a ‘college of experts’ including public and service user representation.  
 
Any proposed changes will be subject to debate and challenge by the public, service users, 
local communities and their elected representatives, health and care staff and their trade 
unions.  When each Service Review is completed, the changes proposed will be subject to 
wider engagement and where required will be subjected to formal public consultation.  Where 
formal public consultation is needed, it is anticipated that this will commence from mid-2017 
A copy of the Wider Devon Acute Services Review document ‘Services not Structures’ is 
attached.  
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 20



 

3 
 

 

ACUTE HOSPITAL SERVICES REVIEW 
 

 

‘Services not Structures’ 
 

 

A Compelling Case for Change 
 

 

Under the NEW Devon Success Regime, a detailed case for change has been produced and is 

being refreshed to reflect the transition to a Devon-wide Sustainability and Transformation Plan. 

The compelling case for change in Devon’s current model of acute hospital care is clearly set out 

and includes: 

 
• Our demographic change which is driving increased need for treatment and care, and which 

is outstripping the capacity of our acute hospital services to meet that need, resulting in 

longer waiting times for access to care, including emergency care, planned care and cancer 

care. 

• It is challenging for the current configuration of services, designed and funded for historical 

levels of demand and service standards, to achieve and sustainably deliver these increasing 

standards of care, adoption of new technology and ‘best practice’ and innovative ways of 

working, for which it was not designed. 

• The costs of  striving  to meet increasing  need, rising standards and new technologies, 

including new drugs and diagnostics, through the current model of acute hospital services 

are higher than our current and predicted funding levels. This is partly driven by high locum 

and  agency costs,  where  hospitals  are  unable to  permanently recruit  the medical  and 

nursing workforce needed to deliver services, and duplication of specialist services. 

Expenditure on locum and agency was £49.7m (financial year April 2015 to March 2016) 

across the five Trusts in Devon. 

• Provider Trusts are currently failing to deliver the key access and quality standards for 
access to effective assessment, treatment and care for the population of Devon. In summary 
for August 2016: 

o The 95% standard for patients being seen in A&E within 4 hours – the Devon system 

is currently achieving 91.6% 

o The 92% standard that no patient should wait more than 18 weeks from Referral to 

Treatment – the Devon system is currently achieving 89.7%. 

o The 85% standard for assessment and treatment for Cancer within 62 days – the 

Devon system is currently achieving 82.1% 

o The 99% standard for Diagnostics – the Devon system is currently achieving 96.9% 

• The Devon acute hospital system is currently costing more than funded levels, with a deficit 

of £50m predicted for this year, increasing to £305m by 20/21 should the ‘status quo’ be 

maintained. 

Page 21



 

4 
 

Scope of the Review 
 

 

The Acute Services Review is not about the current system of acute hospital care staying the same 

but improving its efficiency - the opportunities for efficiency improvement in our acute hospital 

services are already being undertaken in separate projects within the STP, and we are failing to 

deliver timely and high quality care in a range of services right now. 

 
This Review is a partner project to the STP project which is planning changes to the model of care 

in our communities and under which, both CCG’s are currently consulting with the public on 

proposals for changes to our Community Hospitals (and in South Devon to Minor Injuries Units). 

 
The Acute Service Review is focused on optimising the quality and timeliness of care by reforming 

individual acute hospital services to be more resilient, with better outcomes and improved 

affordability, so that they can meet the increasing demand for acute and specialist services, that can 

only be provided by hospital-based clinical teams and support services now and in the future. 

 
The review is based on an ‘all Devon’ footprint, but some services may, because of population flows 

or scale of service, need to be considered on a wider geography, and for these services the Review 

Team will work in partnership with neighbouring STP’s, Clinical Commissioning Groups and 

Specialist Service Commissioners. 

 
An important step in the process will be to define and agree the set of standards that ensure 
services are ‘good care for the people of Devon’.  These are the standards against which the need 
for change in any given service will be assessed.  Any changes proposed must consider a range of 
options for how they can be delivered and the level of standard that can be reached – from ‘good’ to 
‘excellent/best in class’, and bring forward a preferred option. 

 

 

Principles for the Review 
 

 

This review will be founded on a set of principles – which will guide the work of the review.  These 

principles are drawn from the ‘triple aim’ defined in the Five Year Forward View as 
 

 

•   Improving the health of the population 

•   Improving the quality of care delivery 

•   Achieving better value by reducing the cost of care 
 

 

There is a fourth principle – improving the experience of staff working in our system of care, making 

their jobs challenging but satisfying and increasing the attractiveness of a career in the Devon 

health and social care system. 

 
The review will: 

 

 

• Address inequalities in the health of the population of Devon and improve outcomes, through 

the development of prevention, early intervention, expert and well informed service users, and 

timely and responsive treatment, care that delivers reduced variation in clinical outcomes and a 

good experience for the people who use our services. 

• Focus on improving service quality and sustainability in the interests of an equal standard of 

care and not the future of buildings or individual organisational interests. 

Page 22



 

5 
 

• Address the current ‘post code lottery’ where some people in Devon wait longer for treatment 

and care than others depending on where they live. 

• Promote change that is evidence-based and that will result in clinical benefit and improved 

outcomes for patients, and ensure that the treatment offered will be of proven benefit for the 

individual patient. 

• Recognise the unique geography of Devon and that distance from service provision should not 

of itself be a factor that prevents the delivery of optimum care and best outcomes for patients. 

• Ensure that reconfiguration of acute and specialist hospital care will maximise the benefit of 

integration with primary and community health and social care, including mental health, disability 
and children’s care, and will seek to manage population need as a system, not silos of care. 

• Seek to configure acute hospital services to achieve the best outcomes for the population of 
Devon and for the individual service provided, while recognising the need to group certain 
services together because of their interdependences and critical clinical adjacencies. 

• The review will not focus on the future of individual hospitals in the current system, but will seek 

to ensure that no single service change destabilises any hospital. 

• Ensure that any proposed change will be affordable within the funding allocated for Devon, so 
that ‘out of hospital care’ can be protected and invested in. 

• Draw on, and be aligned with, the work underway to deliver a new model of care for the wider 

health and social care system, and the intent that this model of care will provide community- 

based alternatives to hospital admission and will minimise delayed discharges for patients who 

are medically fit and ready to be discharged to a more appropriate form of care. 

• Seek  to  promote  better  alternatives  –  more  effective/efficient/better  quality  service  model, 

relatively easily available – either through rationalisation of the location of services, networking 

across hospitals, a new integrated clinical pathway or an ‘out of hospital’ delivery model 

 
Successful delivery of any change pre-supposes that the transitional funding needed to secure safe, 

well managed change can be secured 

 
These general principles will inform the development of proposed changes in care models in Devon. 

 

 

Criteria to Guide the Decisions of the Review 
 

 

Any proposed changes to the current model of acute and specialist hospital care will rightly be 

subject to debate and challenge by the public, service users, local communities and their elected 

representatives and our staff and trade union colleagues. 

 
We recognise that many of our citizens and staff will be concerned about any proposed change and 

are not confident that their voice will be heard in any consultation processes.  Therefore, this review 

will be a transparent process that enables all stakeholders to judge whether any proposed changes 

will: 

 

• be more effective in responding to current and future demand 

• deliver against increasing standards for safe and high quality care 

• ensure more resilient services now and in the future. 
 

 
Subject to the advice of Health Oversight and Scrutiny Committees of local authorities, there may 

be a need for commissioners formally to consult local populations, service users and the public of 

Page 23



 

6 
 

Devon about the proposed changes. In doing so, commissioners must demonstrate that options for 
change  have  been  objectively  assessed  against  these  principles  and  criteria.  Therefore,  an 
important first step is to ensure these are accepted by our stakeholders as understandable, fair and 
transparent in guiding decision-making to achieve the best options for safe, effective and affordable 
acute hospital care services that will improve outcomes and timeliness of care for the people of 
Devon, and thus provide a compelling case for change. 

 

The following criteria are proposed/will be used to guide the evaluation of any options against the 
current delivery of services. In making this assessment it is not expected that each option will score 
highly on every dimension, but that the overall assessment will deliver an option for service change, 
that will deliver the best overall outcome for the people of Devon. With this in mind the following 
criteria are proposed: 

 

• Safety: delivers improved patient safety 

• Quality and Outcome: results in clinical benefit and improved outcome for the population, 
and treatment offered that will be of proven benefit for the individual patient. 

• Access: maximises the ability of patients and carers to access the service as measured by 

o reasonable travel time given the balance to be achieved with service improvement 
and achievement of best outcomes, and 

o access to care within the waiting time standards for that service 
• Service  sustainability:  results  in  improved  service  quality and  sustainability given  the 

challenges of the availability of the permanent clinical workforce, avoids high levels of 
agency/locum staff usage, and addresses known and/or imminent workforce challenges to 
the delivery of services both during and outside traditional working hours 

• Training:  supports  the effective training  and development  of  future clinicians and care 

professionals. 

• Cost effectiveness: minimises the cost of service delivery relative to the alternatives. 

• Patient Choice: promotes patient ability to choose provider or treatment 

• User experience: delivers an improvement to the user experience 
 

 
Approach and Methodology for the Acute Hospital Service review 

 
Clinical engagement has identified a number of services that are currently not delivering best 

possible outcomes for the people of Devon and are not cost effective when compared to alternative 

models of care.   In discussions to date, a number of services have been identified which should be 

considered for review. These include services prioritised by the STP Clinical Cabinet from those 

identified by the NEW Devon Case for Change, South Devon and Torbay-specific priorities, and 

services identified as being potentially at risk of unplanned change because of workforce or other 

challenges. 

 
The criteria above are proposed as guiding the evaluation of any specific service, and – given that 

capacity  needs  to  be  targeted  to  the  most  critically  challenged  services  –  for  selecting  and 

prioritising the services within the scope of the review. 

 
It is proposed that each service, or bundle of connected services, is scored against these criteria, 
identifying the potential for improvement. The Clinical Cabinet, through this exercise has already 
identified the priorities for Phase 1 and will use the same process to identify the priorities for the 
next phases of the Review and to assess the degree of interdependency amongst high priority 
services. 

Page 24



 

7 
 

The STP Clinical Cabinet, made up of representatives from all health and care organisations within 

Devon and including service users, have prioritised the services most urgently requiring review in 

Phase 1 of this work. These priority services are: 

 

• Stroke services (including hyper-acute and stroke rehabilitation). 
 

 

• Maternity (including consultant-led and midwife-led care), Paediatrics and 

Neonatology, to be reviewed together given their inter-dependency. 
 

 

• Urgent and Emergency services, focusing particularly on the acute hospital 

provision of accident and emergency and co-dependent services. 

 
In addition, the Clinical Cabinet have identified services that need to be reviewed because clinical 
sustainability  was  causing  some  concern.    This  might  be  due  to,  for  example,  national  staff 
shortages or low patient numbers making it difficult for clinical staff to keep their skills up to date. 
These so-called ‘vulnerable’ services include: 

 

• Breast services (surgery and radiology) 

• ENT 

• Interventional Radiology 

• Histopathology 

• Neurology 

• Interventional Cardiology 

• Vascular Surgery 
 

 
Under the ‘vulnerable services’ strand of the review, work is already underway in some areas, such 

as Neurology and ENT. 
 

The services listed have been prioritised for Phase 1 of the Review, and other services will similarly 

be  assessed  for  clinical  priority  in  future  phases  of  this  work  programme.    NHS  England’s 

specialised service and primary care work programmes, which would include specialised cancer 

care, specialist mental health services and primary care development, may also trigger the need for 

a Devon-wide service review in future phases of the Acute Services Review. 

 
Proposed methodology for undertaking specific reviews 

 

 

In carrying out the reviews of specific services, it is essential that the work is undertaken in an 

objective and transparent way to build trust and confidence in the outcome of proposed optimum 

solutions for change. Fully engaging the key stakeholders and partners at every stage will be critical 

to the success of the process. 

 
A core requirement is to set out the arrangements that will be put in place to ensure the review 

process is well governed and has high levels of stakeholder engagement and influence, is open and 

transparent, has key decisions approved in line with the STP Governance arrangements, and wider 

guidance and best practice on effectively managing strategic service change.   An overarching 

project plan is required to ensure quality outcomes at each stage of the review process while 

delivering the review at pace.  The approach proposed and the emerging detailed plan must also 

have the endorsement of the regulatory system within which the STP operates. 

Page 25



   

 

 
 
Next steps 
 
We will put in place robust governance arrangements, start to appoint clinical and 

managerial leadership for each strand of the Review and create ‘colleges of experts’ – 

with clinical, service user and stakeholder representatives - to develop the detailed 

case for change required for each service. 
 

For each service review, where there is a significant change proposed, we will also 

engage widely with service users, clinicians, staff, unions, representative groups and 

the public. Where formal consultation is required, this will be planned and undertaken 

to meet all the statutory requirements relating to NHS service changes. 
 

This development and evaluation process is likely to take at least a year before any 

service change begins. 

 
 

Page 26



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Case for Change 
 

February 2016 

Page 27



  
 

2 
 

Contents 
 
Contents .................................................................................................................................................. 2 

1. Summary .......................................................................................................................................... 3 

2. Context ............................................................................................................................................ 6 

3. The needs of local people .............................................................................................................. 12 

4. Financial considerations ................................................................................................................ 17 

5. Key challenges ............................................................................................................................... 18 

6. Opportunities for change and next steps ...................................................................................... 29 

Endnotes ............................................................................................................................................... 32 

 

 

  

Page 28



  
 

3 
 

1. Summary 
 
People in north, east and west Devon require health and social care services that are of the highest 
quality and are delivered as locally as possible. Local people should be supported to take 
responsibility for their own health as much as possible. If people do become ill, they should sit at the 
heart of a proactive person-centred care system. Achieving this kind of transformation with the 
funding that is available is not an easy task. But by working together, the NHS and social services, 
with other public, private and voluntary sector providers of care, can get the best possible outcomes 
for local people.  
 
There is already much to be proud of about health and social care services in north, east and west 
Devon. Staff work hard to provide good care, local people are relatively healthy compared with 
other parts of the country and local organisations already work together to meet the needs of local 
people. However, in some cases staff are working in settings which are not sustainable in the longer 
term. This fact in no way undervalues the efforts that are made every day to make sure patients get 
as good a service as possible. 
 
However, services are not keeping pace with the changing needs of local people and it is becoming 
increasingly difficult to make sure local people have access to consistently high quality care that are 
affordable and sustainable.  
 
There are a number of reasons for this: 
 

 People in north, east and west Devon are living longer, with increasingly more complex 
care needs that require more support from health and social care services. More than 1 in 
5 people in north, east and west Devon are over the age of 65 and this will be almost 1 in 4 
by 2021. The number of very elderly people is also high, with 3.1% people in north, east and 
west Devon over the age of 85 compared to 2.3% on average across England. Although 
north, east and west Devon is generally affluent, it has deprived areas and there are quite 
big differences in health outcomes – or ‘health inequalities’ – between some of these areas, 
particularly Plymouth.  

 

 Some people have more health and social care needs than others. In north, east and west 
Devon, 40% of local people use almost 80% of health and social care. There are 280,000 local 
people, including 13,000 children, living with one or more long-term condition such as 
asthma, diabetes, hypertension, cancer and mental illness and their needs are complex. 
Around 150,000 people in north, east and west Devon have a mental illness, including 
10,000 people with a serious mental illness who are three to four times more likely to die at 
an earlier age than the general population. And there are 40,000 people with cancer who 
need rapid access to high quality services. 

 

 Doing nothing is neither affordable nor clinically sustainable. The cost of providing health 
and social care is increasing due to demand from the increasing ill health of local people and 
the costs associated with keeping pace with new technology. Funding for health and social 
care is limited, as it is across England. Local health and social care services are under severe 
financial pressure, and are likely to be £442m in the red by 2020/21 if nothing changes 
(note: this number may change when the baseline is updated for the latest allocations). An 
allowance is given to the NHS to reflect additional costs associated with elderly, rural and 
deprived populations – this is called the market forces factor (MFF). There is debate locally 
about whether the MFF in north, east and west Devon fully reflects local challenges; this is 

Page 29



  
 

4 
 

something which will continue to be debated locally but there is currently no assumption of 
any additional funding from this source. 

 
Although there have been some local successes in changing the way services are delivered, there are 
many challenges facing health and social care in north, east and west Devon: 
 

 There are health inequalities across north, east and west Devon, particularly between 
Plymouth and the rest of Devon. For example, a person living in Ilfracombe Central is 
expected to die almost fifteen years earlier than a person living a two hour drive away in 
Newton Poppleford and Harpford. These inequalities need to be reduced, priority given to 
giving every child the best start in life and to preventing ill-health in the first place. 

 

 There is less money spent overall on health and social care in the most deprived areas 
across north, east and west Devon. Over 10% less per year is spent on each person in west 
Devon compared to east Devon even after age and deprivation have been taken into 
account. 

 

 Care needs to be more person-centred and co-ordinated especially for people with more 
than one long-term condition. People do not get enough support to be independent and are 
going into hospital when this could be prevented. There will be a predicted 37,000 more 
emergency admissions to local hospitals over the next five years, an increase of more than 
30%, if nothing changes. Many of these admissions are preventable. This is particularly 
important for end of life care where most people would prefer to die at home but only a 
quarter are able to do so.  

 

 Around 95,000 people with a long-term condition also have a mental illness – these people 
consume a large proportion of the health and social care budget but still achieve poor 
outcomes. People with a long-term condition and a mental illness spend longer in hospital, 
have more investigations and make a slower recovery. They are also more likely to die 
earlier in life compared to people without a mental illness. 

 

 There are too many people in hospital beds who don’t need to be there. People in north, 
east and west Devon stay in hospital for a long time even though many are medically fit to 
leave hospital but can’t. Every day, over 500 people are in local hospitals when they could be 
elsewhere; most of them are old and many have dementia. The longer people stay in 
hospital, the more likely they are to get complications and it is also expensive to keep 
someone in hospital when they don’t need to be there. The main reasons for delay are 
people waiting for health or social care in the community. 
 

 Local people are waiting too long to access some cancer services. When people are 
diagnosed with cancer, they need to be able to access high quality services as quickly as 
possible. Cancer waiting times are poor across all hospital providers in north, east and west 
Devon. 
 

 Local hospitals are finding it difficult to deliver services for some of the most seriously ill 
people. This is because many services are small, and senior staff and specialist tests and 
equipment are not available 24 hours a day. These include stroke, maternity, A&E and 
children’s services. There is a particular issue for North Devon District Hospital which is one 
of the smallest acute hospitals in England. However all hospitals are impacted by this and in 
some services senior doctors are present for less than half of the time. Even if there were 

Page 30



  
 

5 
 

unlimited funds, there are simply not enough qualified and experienced staff, and these staff 
will choose to work in places where there are enough cases to keep their skills. 

 

 Services could be run more efficiently across north, east and west Devon. An estimated 
£85m is being spent on areas where staff may be able to provide the same quality of service 
but more efficiently. Over £30mwas being spent on temporary staff in hospitals in 2014/15 
who are more expensive than permanent staff and can reduce the quality of care and lead 
to a poor patient experience. Up to £25m could be saved on clinical supplies if hospitals 
work together to buy them. Up to £21m could be saved by matching spend on continuing 
care to best performing areas. A third of bed space in community hospitals is empty or 
under-used – the money spent on this space could be better used elsewhere.  

 

 There are difficulties with recruiting and retaining staff at all levels making it hard to 
provide comprehensive and high quality services. Quality of care and patient/client 
experience is dependent on having a well-trained, motivated and experienced workforce 
and it is important that more of these staff are recruited and retained. Many staff are due to 
retire in the next 10 years and local organisations already have high levels of vacancies and 
staff turnover in many areas. For example, almost a quarter of GPs in north, east and west 
Devon intend to leave the NHS in the next 5 years.    

  
These are not just issues facing health and social care services locally. Many national commentators 
have recognised similar issues and have said health and social care services need to change in order 
to tackle them. Many other parts of the country are starting to develop their plans for tackling 
similar problems, or have already taken action.  
 
There are lots of great services in north, east and west Devon but things can be done better so that 
health inequalities will reduce, access to the best services will improve and services will become 
more joined-up and responsive. Financial pressures will also reduce, minimising the risk of local 
services failing. Staff will feel that their efforts are having more directly positive effects on patients 
and should find their workloads more manageable alongside seeing improved patient satisfaction. 
 
This document sets out the local context, the changing needs of people in north, east and west 
Devon, the challenges facing local health and social care services, what great services could look like 
and what happens next.  
 
 
  

Page 31



  
 

6 
 

2. Context 
 

2.1. The local area 
 
North, east and west Devon is located in the South West of England and covers a population of 
883,000 people1. It includes the city of Plymouth (population c.250,000) in the west, the city of 
Exeter (population c.125,000) in the east and the large market town of Barnstaple (population 
c.50,000) in the north2. This large geographical area (2,330 square miles)3 includes many smaller 
towns and villages and rural areas including the Dartmoor National Park (369 square miles)4. 
 

  

 
 

2.2. Commissioners of services 
 
Health and social care spending on the residents of north, east and west Devon was £1.9bn in 
2014/15. Of this, 29% of this was spent on hospital care, 20% on social care, 10% on community 
services, 20% on primary care, 9% on specialised services, 6% on mental health and 6% on 
continuing care5. 
 

 

Page 32



  
 

7 
 

 
 
Health services in north, east and west Devon are commissioned on behalf of local people by 
Northern, Eastern and Western Devon Clinical Commissioning Group (NEW Devon CCG) and NHS 
England. NEW Devon CCG is the largest CCG in England, by the size of the local population6. Since 
April 2015, health and social care services in west Devon have been jointly commissioned by 
Plymouth City Council and NEW Devon CCG. Social care services in north and east Devon are 
commissioned by Devon County Council. NHS England commissions specialist services such as major 
trauma, kidney transplants, eating disorders, plus primary care services whilst NEW Devon CCG 
commissions all other health services including mental health, hospital and community services (in 
partnership with Plymouth City Council in west Devon).  
 

2.3. Providers of services 
 
In 2014/15, in north, east and west Devon, there were around 5.5 million consultations at GP 
surgeries7, 838,000 contacts with community staff, 190,000 attendances at A&E, 105,000 planned 
operations performed and 83,000 emergencies that required hospitalisation8. There is a complex 
range of organisations providing these health and social care services in north, east and west Devon.  
 

Page 33



  
 

8 
 

 
 
There are 121 GP practices, 130 dentist practices, 201 pharmacies, 112 opticians and many voluntary 
and community sector groups, which are all run independently and provide a range of primary care 
services9. The GP out-of-hours service is provided by Devon Doctors. 
 
There are three mental health providers which provide inpatient mental health facilities, community 
mental health teams, liaison psychiatry into hospitals and a range of specialist mental health 
services. These are:  
 

 Devon Partnership NHS Trust – which provides services across Devon (including south 
Devon) in addition to regional and national specialist mental health services 

 Plymouth Community Healthcare – which provides mental health, physical health, children’s 
and families health and adult social care services in Plymouth and community services in 
west Devon 

 Virgin Care – which provides children and family health and social care services and 
community based mental health services for children and young people across Devon 
(including south Devon)  

 
There are three community providers which deliver a range of services including inpatient 
community beds, stoke rehabilitation beds, urgent care, diagnostics, outpatients and minor surgery 
and community teams including community nurses, district nurses, health visitors and a range of 
therapists. There are also 20 community hospitals in north, east and west Devon. The providers are: 
 

 Plymouth Community Healthcare – which provides mental health, physical health, children’s 
and families health and adult social care services in Plymouth and community services in 
west Devon 

 Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust – which is integrated with the acute hospital provider 
in north Devon and currently provides adult community services across north and east 
Devon (adult community services in east Devon are due to be combined with acute services 
at Royal Devon & Exeter NHS Foundation Trust from April 2016) 

Page 34



  
 

9 
 

 Virgin Care – which provides children and family health and social care services and 
community based mental health services for children and young people across Devon 
(including south Devon)   

 
There are three hospital trusts providing acute hospital services including A&E, emergency and 
elective (planned) surgery, acute stroke services, consultant-led maternity services and inpatient 
children’s services plus a range of specialist services. The trusts are: 
 

 Royal Devon & Exeter NHS Foundation Trust – provides acute hospital services from 
predominantly one site in Exeter, and some planned services at community hospitals in east 
Devon. It is a medical undergraduate teaching hospital and provides some specialist services 
for people outside north, east and west Devon.   

 Plymouth Hospital NHS Trust – provides acute hospital services from Derriford Hospital in 
Plymouth. It is a medical undergraduate teaching hospital and provides some specialist 
services for people outside north, east and west Devon. 

 Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust – which provides acute hospital services from North 
Devon District Hospital and is currently integrated with the community services provider in 
north and east Devon (adult community services in east Devon are due to be combined with 
acute services at Royal Devon & Exeter NHS Foundation Trust from April 2016) 

 
The hospitals in north, east and west Devon are some distance from each other – and from other 
nearby hospitals such as Torbay Hospital and Musgrove Park Hospital in Taunton. For example, 
North Devon District Hospital is over an hour’s drive away from any other acute hospital10. The 
distance between hospitals, and the time to access services, is a key consideration when planning 
services. Ambulance services are provided by South Western Ambulance Service NHS Foundation 
Trust. 
 

 
 
People living in north, east and west Devon also go outside the area for some specialist treatments, 
for example, burns care in Bristol and liver transplants in London. These specialist treatments are not 
covered by this case for change.  

Page 35



  
 

10 
 

2.4. The Success Regime 
 
Commissioners and providers of health services in north, east and west Devon have recently become 
part of the Success Regime, a national initiative to “protect and promote services for patients in local 
health and care systems that are struggling with financial or quality problems, or sometimes both”11. 
In north, east and west Devon, this initiative will try to help solve local problems through short-term 
improvements in quality and finance, medium and long-term transformation of services and 
development of the local leadership to lead the challenging and necessary changes required. 
 

2.5. Local successes 
 
There are many services in north, east and west Devon that provide high quality services every day 
and will continue to do so. The NHS and social services in north, east, west Devon have also already 
had a number of successes making changes to local services to deliver the needs of the local 
population. There are many examples of how local services are starting to implement new ways of 
delivering care. Some of these changes are listed below.  
 
Example 1: SMART Recovery programme 
Devon Partnership Trust (DPT) have set up an ambitious 4-year programme called SMART recovery. 
This brings together the development of care pathways, mobile working and more efficient use of 
estates to allow staff to spend less time travelling and more time providing care. It is a 
transformational programme which aims to make using services simpler via creation of a single 
‘front door’ for care. The number of sites the Trust works across is being reduced, and staff are being 
equipped with new technology to allow more efficient care provision. Setting up care hubs in Devon 
and Torbay is also being considered as part of the programme12.  

 
Example 2: Early Help 
Devon County Council have developed a 3-year programme to deliver interventions to troubled 
families and children with the overall aim of building resilient, self-sustaining families. The qualifying 
criteria surround anti-social behaviour, children not in school, joblessness and widespread agency 
concern. Devon County Council established locality teams, who manage and deliver these 
interventions to families with a multi-agency approach. This is the first attempt to join up the 
agencies which regularly consult with troubled families into a single combined service13.   
 
Example 3: Live Well, a health promotion hub 
Plymouth Community Healthcare have developed Live Well, an online health promotion hub. This 
provides a wealth of health information about lifestyle factors which lead to poor health, and 
information on how to make positive changes to prevent ill-health. There is a single online point of 
access which provides fact sheets, leaflets and self-help advice as well as details of stop smoking 
clinics, weight management programmes and chlamydia testing services. There is also a telephone 
advice line14.   
 
Example 4: ‘One system, one budget’ 
Plymouth City Council and Northern, Eastern and Western Devon Clinical Commissioning Group have 
created an integrated pooled fund of £480m covering the full range of health and wellbeing services: 
hospital care, adult social care, community health care, public health, services to children and 
families, housing, and leisure. Commissioners have developed four integrated strategies with action 
plans covering the entire health and wellbeing system: ‘Wellbeing’, ‘Children and Young People’, 
‘Community’, and ‘Enhanced and Specialised’. The partners have also established integrated 
commissioning arrangements that allow the CCG and the City Council to work as one team15.  
 

Page 36



  
 

11 
 

Example 5: Integrated care for Exeter (ICE) 
In Exeter, local government, public and community sector organisations and key NHS providers have 
come together to give residents a better experience of health and social care and support people to 
remain independent for longer. Multidisciplinary teams have been created to provide coordinated 
support in the community. People receive single, up front assessments and information is then 
shared across organisations. People then receive support to remain independent in their home from 
a single care coordinator, whom they come to know well. There is a single point of access for 
information. Community based well-being networks have been created to offer alternative and early 
interventions, alongside prevention services to promote healthy behaviours16.  
 
Example 6: Integrated service for people with complex needs 
Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust have developed their service for people with multiple long 
term conditions and complex needs. This includes increasing  Rapid Response Nursing with an urgent 
response within 2 hours and visit within 4 hours to provide intensive and overnight care at home for 
short periods, developing Rapid Intervention Centres that are co-located with social care to provide 
a more streamlined and integrated response to urgent requirements for out of hospital care, 
introducing multidisciplinary weekly discussions for people with most complex needs, expanding the 
care homes nursing team and developing integrated health and social care teams at the ‘front door’ 
of the hospital to prevent an admission and at the ‘back door’ to facilitate timely complex 
discharges. This service predominantly supports admission avoidance and early facilitated discharge 
for patients. 
 
Example 7: integrated children’s services 
Virgin Care have developed, and are now delivering, a large scale service transformation programme 
across Integrated Children’s Services (ICS) enabling consistent and simpler access to services and 
freeing up clinical time to support more children and their families. This has introduced new IT 
systems and is empowering clinical teams with mobile technology to view and update records 
securely as they work in the community, allowing more time to be spent with families. A Single Point 
of Access phone line and website, which has been developed in partnership with young people and 
families who use ICS services, is being launched shortly. These will make it easier for children, young 
people and their families and other professionals to understand and access the support available, 
and ensuring co-ordinated multidisciplinary care for children with complex needs. 
 
These kinds of improvements have helped the local health and social care system to change and 
adapt to provide good services for local people, but more still needs to be done to respond to local 
needs and consistently deliver the highest quality of care and ensure value for money. 

  

Page 37



  
 

12 
 

3. The needs of local people 
 
Everyone in north, east and west Devon has a different need for health and social care services. 
Some need intensive support and care (for example, in the final years of their lives) whilst others 
access services very infrequently (perhaps just to see a GP for common illnesses). Much of this need 
depends on demographic factors such as age and deprivation but it also depends on whether people 
are living with one or more long term health condition such as asthma, cancer, dementia or mental 
illness. To understand the changing needs local people in north, east and west Devon, it is important 
to look at the type of illnesses or conditions local people have.  
 

3.1. People in north, east and west Devon are living longer, with increasingly more 

complex care needs that require more support from health and social care services  
 
There are three distinct populations in north, east and west Devon17.  
 

 In west Devon, people mainly live in and around the city of Plymouth and are relatively 
young (near the England average), more deprived and more urban than the people in the 
east and the north.  

 The people in east Devon are comparatively much older, more affluent and live in more 
rural locations. East Devon has a higher proportion of very old people (aged 85+) than 
almost anywhere else in England.  

 The people in north Devon are also comparatively old (although with a lower proportion of 
very old people than in the east) with pockets of deprivation, especially in Barnstaple. 
People in north Devon tend to live in more rural locations. 

 
These different sorts of people means that there are different health needs and health outcomes 
across north, east and west Devon. Health outcomes are generally good in north and east Devon 
although vaccination coverage is poor and infant mortality is high. In west Devon, life expectancy is 
lower than the England average, mortality rates (number of deaths per thousand people) are high 
and smoking and alcohol consumption are higher than the England average18. 
 

3.2. Some people have more health and social care needs than others 
 
Different people in north, east and west Devon require different levels of health and social care.  
 

Page 38



  
 

13 
 

 
 
The majority in north, east and west Devon are generally healthy and only need health and social 
care occasionally. However, some groups of people need more care than others - this is common 
across England and is influenced by factors such as a person’s age, underlying health and income. 
Consequently, around 40% of local people use almost 80% of health and social care in north, east 
and west Devon19. 
 

 
 
Looking at local people in this way means that health and social care can be targeted at those who 
need it most, and that services can be designed for people with different needs. 

 

Page 39



  
 

14 
 

Over half of local people are generally well and only need care occasionally 
Over half of local people are generally well and only need care occasionally, perhaps visiting the GP 
for a common illness, having a baby or having a minor operation. A range of health promotion 
services such as stopping smoking or alcohol awareness can be used to make sure people stay well 
as they age. Services need to be easily accessible and of a high quality when people do need them. 
People need to be given more information and support to be able to self-care for minor illnesses and 
injuries. 
 
Those who consume the most health and social care are people with learning and physical 
disabilities, for example, a child with learning and/or physical disabilities costs an average of over 
£11,500 each year for health and social care. However, these groups of people are very small, for 
example there are only around 400 children with learning and/or physical disabilities in north, east 
and west Devon20. 
 

Local people are living longer which means they need more care and treatment   
More than 1 in 5 people in north, east and west Devon is over 65, which is higher than the national 
average, and this will be almost to 1 in 4 people by 202121. The number of very elderly people is also 
high, with 3.1% people in north, east and west Devon over the age of 85 compared to 2.3% on 
average across England22. More of these older people live in east Devon and fewer in west Devon 
but all areas are seeing growth in the number of older people, in common with the rest of England. 
 
That people now live for longer than they have ever done before is a cause for celebration. However, 
for local health and social services, an ageing population is hugely significant because older people 
are more likely to develop long term health needs such as diabetes, heart disease and breathing 
difficulties, and are more at risk of strokes, cancer and other health problems23 – which together 
means people tend to need more care and more treatment as they get older. In north, east and west 
Devon, almost 40% of health and social care expenditure is used for people aged over 70, even 
though they represent only 15% of the population. One third of the hospital beds in north, east and 
west Devon are occupied by someone over the age of 80 and two thirds of the people staying more 
than 10 days in hospital are over the age of 7024. There are also around 8,500 people in residential 
and nursing care homes in north, east and west Devon (half are aged over 85)25. 
 

An ageing population also means increasing incidence of dementia – there are an estimated 10,000 
people in north, east and west Devon with dementia – although only half of these have a formal 
diagnosis26. More than 2 out of 5 people over the age of 70 admitted in an emergency have 
dementia27 and over 45% of the hospital beds in Devon are occupied by someone with reported 
dementia who is medically fit to leave but has not been discharged28. Given the number of people 
with dementia in north, east and west Devon, there is a real opportunity for local services to develop 
world class services to meet their needs.  
 
Older people also find it difficult to access services (especially if they have to travel long distances), 
are likely to be living with more than one long term health need and may also be carers for another 
older person in poor health. So local health and social care services need to prioritise high quality 
and accessible services for the older population.  
 

More local people are living with long-term conditions and their needs are complex 
There are 280,000 people (including 13,000 children) in north, east and west Devon with one or 
more long-term conditions and a person with a long-term condition costs up to twice as much as a 
generally healthy person29. A long-term condition is a health problem that is present for over a year. 
Many local people have one or more long-term conditions with high levels of asthma, chronic 

Page 40



  
 

15 
 

obstructive pulmonary disorder (COPD), hyperthyroidism (metabolism), diabetes, chronic heart 
disease, atrial fibrillation (irregular heartbeat which can cause strokes) and hypertension (high blood 
pressure)30. Unsurprisingly, there are a high number of people in north, east and west Devon who 
have had a stroke – over 1,800 in 2014/1531.  
 

 
 
As the population gets even older, more people are likely to have these a long-term condition32. This 
is a challenge for health and social care services because people with one or more long-term 
condition need high quality, consistent and integrated health and social care. Services are often not 
set up to provide this care – they are set up to care for separate illnesses rather than deal with 
people’s overall needs. People with a long-term condition are also likely to have a long term informal 
carer (such as a spouse or grown-up child) and these carers also need to be supported.   
 
People with one long-term condition can often live with it with only a little support from health and 
social care services. People with more than one condition, or who have a long-term condition and 
then something else happens to them (such as having a fall), have more complex needs. Health and 
social care services need to be designed to respond to these needs.  
 

Mental illness is common in north, east and west Devon 
It is important that mental health has equal priority with physical health, that discrimination 
associated with mental illness ends and that everyone who needs mental health care should get the 
right support, at the right time. More must also be done to prevent mental illness and promote 
mental wellbeing33.  
 
Mental illness is relatively common in north, east and west Devon with around 150,000 local people 
aged 18-64 having a common mental disorder such as depression or anxiety34 and some 10,000 
people (including 1,200 children) having a more serious mental illness such as schizophrenia35.    
 
This is a problem because people with a serious mental illness in north, east and west Devon are 
between three and four times more likely to die at an earlier age than the general population36, and 
this is higher than in other similar places.  

Page 41



  
 

16 
 

There is also a lot of evidence that links poor physical health with mental illness. For example, having 
depression doubles the risk of developing coronary heart disease – and people with depression have 
significantly worse survival rates from cancer and heart disease37. Compared to other places which 
have a similar age, deprivation and rurality profile, north, east and west Devon has very high 
numbers of people with depression. However, there is much less spent on mental health (when out-
of-area placements are excluded) in north, east and west Devon than in other similar areas – this is 
an issue given the high number of people with a mental illness and the poor outcomes they achieve.  
 
Local health and social care services need to prioritise high quality and accessible services for people 
with a mental illness, especially those who also have poor physical health. These services also need 
to prioritise the mental health needs of people with a physical health need. 
 

There are many people (including children) with cancer who need rapid access to high 

quality services 
 
More than 1 person in 3 will develop cancer at some time in their lives, and 1 in 4 will die of the 
condition. Cancer can develop at any age, but it is most common in older people – more than 3 out 
of 5 new cancers are diagnosed in people aged 65 or over, and more than a third are diagnosed in 
those aged 75 or over38. There are 40,000 people with cancer in north, east and west Devon, 
including 1,000 children and the cost for each person with cancer is double that for a generally 
healthy person39.  
 
Local health and social care services therefore need to make sure that people and children with 
cancer have rapid access to high quality services.  

Page 42



  
 

17 
 

4. Financial considerations 
 
Although the Government’s pledge to protect health budgets means they have fared better than 
some other areas of public spending, increases in health funding in the coming years are likely to be 
flat, in north, east and west Devon as much as anywhere else40. In addition to this, the financial 
pressures caused by the increased burden of more ill health and the need to keep pace with new 
technology means that funding over and above inflation of 2.6% would be needed each year to 
deliver current services41. Local health and social care organisations are therefore facing a financial 
shortfall in 2015/16 of £122m (4% of funding), rising to £442m (14% of funding) in 2020/21 if 
nothing changes42 (note: this number may change when the baseline is updated for the latest 
allocations). 
 

 
 
An allowance is given to the NHS to reflect additional costs associated with elderly, rural and 
deprived populations – this is called the market forces factor (MFF). Estimates show that the local 
acute hospitals receive about £17m less in total for the market forces factor compared to similar 
hospitals in other areas43. There is debate locally about whether the MFF in north, east and west 
Devon fully reflects local challenges; this is something which will continue to be debated locally but 
there is currently no assumption of any additional funding from this source. 
 
The consequence of doing nothing is that local health and social care services would not be 
maintained. A new way of providing services is needed, that can be delivered within the funding 
available. This cannot be done by one organisation, but needs to be done across health and social 
care, with everyone working together. 
  

Page 43



  
 

18 
 

5. Key challenges 
 
There are challenges for health and social care services across north, east and west Devon. These 
challenges are in the reduction of health inequalities, in enabling people to take responsibility for 
their own health and care and in providing health and social care to those who need it.    
 

5.1. There are health inequalities across north, east and west Devon 
 
Although deprivation levels across north, east and west Devon are lower than the national average, 
there are startling differences between areas. West Devon (particularly Plymouth) has some of the 
most deprived populations in England, whereas east Devon has none. For example, a person living in 
Ilfrcombe Central is expected to die more than fifteen years earlier than a person living a two hour 
drive away in Newton Poppleford and Harpford . People living in poorer areas not only die sooner, 44

but spend more of their lives with disability – an average total difference of 17 years45. 
 

 
 
Not only is there a strong social justice case for addressing health inequalities, there is also a 
pressing economic case. It is estimated that the annual cost of health inequalities is between £36 
billion and £40 billion through lost taxes, welfare payments and costs to the NHS46 (this equates to 
around £640m in north, east and west Devon). 
 
Health inequalities are caused by many things – housing, income, education, social isolation, 
disability – and these are strongly affected by economic and social status. In Plymouth, there is lower 
levels of physical activity, higher levels of smoking, more children living in poverty and higher levels 
of alcohol abuse47.  Action on health inequalities requires action across all the social determinants of 
health, including education, occupation, income, home and community. Health and social care 
services cannot address all of these areas but can address some of them – and it is clear that as 
much needs to be done as possible locally to reduce inequalities. To reduce health inequalities, the 
Marmot review recommended that the highest priority needs to be given to giving every child the 

Page 44



  
 

19 
 

best start in life and also to strength the role and impact of ill-health prevention48. There is also 
evidence that increased investment in primary care can reduce health inequalities49. 
 

It is important that investment in health promotion continues, with a priority on giving children 
the best start in life.  

 

5.2. Less money is spent on health and social care in the most deprived areas 
 
In north, east and west Devon, the most deprived communities are in the west, particularly 
Plymouth50. Over 10% less is spent on health care for each person in west Devon compared to north 
and east Devon, even when age and deprivation is taken into account.  
 

 
 
This may contribute to poorer health outcome for people in west Devon, particularly Plymouth. For 
example, there is one extra GP for every 7,000 people in north and east Devon compared to west 
Devon51. Difficulties accessing GP care may explain the higher levels of emergency admissions to 
hospital in west Devon. There is also a big difference in the amount of planned operations that 
happen in different parts of north, east and west Devon - the number of planned operations are 
much higher in east Devon52.  
 

The spread of health and social care across north, east and west Devon needs to be made more 
equal.  

 

5.3. Care needs to be more person-centred and co-ordinated especially for people 

with more than one long-term condition  
 
Although emergency admissions to hospital are similar in north, east and west Devon compared to 
other similar areas, they are projected to rise by 30% over the next five years, so that by 2021 there 

Page 45



  
 

20 
 

will be 37,000 more emergency admissions to local hospitals53, if nothing changes. Many of these 
admissions are preventable.  
 
Advances in technology mean that people are increasingly more able to take responsibility for their 
own care. Information is much more available and technology means that treatments such as 
oxygen treatment, nutritional support (artificial feeding) and continuous glucose monitoring that 
used to require a hospital visit can now be done in the home. Assistive technology, from simple can 
openers to ‘high tech’ equipment that monitors vital signs, will play a major role in the future, 
helping to support people to live independently and communicate with care staff. When people are 
involved in managing and deciding about their own care and treatment, they have better outcomes, 
are less likely to be hospitalised, tend to follow appropriate drug treatments and avoid over-
treatment54. This is particularly important for end of life care where, in north, east and west Devon, 
only 25% of local people die at home55 whilst research show that two thirds would like to do so56. 
 
Local services are also disjointed and not focused clearly and exclusively on the person. This creates 
unnecessary duplication, disjointed services, poorer outcomes and exhausted carers. People have to 
report what has happened to them as a result of their long-term condition many times over. They 
also receive multiple home visits from different care staff, when often one should be enough. It is 
difficult to share clinical information between teams meaning people are being seen and treated by 
care professionals who do not know their medical history and care professionals become frustrated 
at not being able to flexibly provide the care that is required57.  
 
Disjointed and reactive care is a particular issue for people living with a long-term condition. Moving 
constantly in and out of hospital means many are unable to lead normal lives. Around 1 in 3 of 
people with a long-term condition in north, east and west Devon report that they have not had 
enough support from local services to help them manage it58. People find it hard to get the care they 
need when they need it, and this then has a knock-on effect on other services – for example forcing 
them to go to hospital as the only other option available to them. This is also true for children. There 
are high levels of demand for child and adolescent mental health services with increases in referrals, 
their complexity and risk. Self-harm is high and rising, the need for support for young people with 
eating disorders is significant, and there are still far too many children in care or in highly specialist 
placements - often many miles from home.59. 
 

It is important to make sure that care is person-centred and co-ordinated for people with long-
term conditions so they are prevented from going to hospital whenever possible. Commissioners 
of services also need to link together to fund joint packages of care. 

 

5.4. Around 95,000 people with a long-term condition also have a mental illness – 

these people consume a large proportion of the health and social care budget but 

still achieve poor outcomes 
 
An estimated one third of people in north, east and west Devon who have a long-term condition 
(such as diabetes, heart disease or cancer) also have a mental illness such as depression60 - this is 
around 95,000 people. People living in deprived areas, such as some parts of Plymouth and north 
Devon are more likely to have both a long-term condition and a mental illness61.  
 
Almost half as much again is spent on physical health care for these people compared to someone 
with a long-term condition but without a mental illness62 - around £66m a year in total in north, east 
and west Devon. People with a long-term condition and a mental illness spend longer in hospital, 
have more investigations and make slower recovery. They are also more likely to die – for example, 

Page 46



  
 

21 
 

people with asthma and depression are twice as likely to die early as those without depression.  
Children with diabetes and depression are much more likely to get long-term damage to their eyes63. 
People with a mental illness are also less likely to be able to manage their own illness and more likely 
to do things that will make their long-term condition worse such as smoking or drinking64.  
 

Given the number of people who have one or more long-term conditions and a mental illness, the 
amount of health and social care services they receive and their relatively poor outcomes, it is 
important that detailed consideration is given to new ways of promoting good health and treating 
people with poor physical and mental health. 

 

5.5. There are too many people in hospital beds who don’t need to be there 
 
When people go to hospital in north, east and west Devon, they tend to stay in hospital for a long 
time and have difficulty getting out of hospital and back home. Every day over 500 people are in 
local acute hospitals when they could be elsewhere65. Half of all people admitted to local acute 
hospitals stay longer than 10 days66 and around one third of people are medically fit to leave 
hospital but can’t67 - this is a particular issue for people over the age of 7068. It is the same in the 
community and in mental health hospitals. Over half the people in north, east and west Devon who 
are fit to leave the community hospital have been waiting to leave for at least four days69. 
 

 
 
When people are ready to leave hospital, local services are often not ready to look after them, so 
they have to stay in hospital longer. The longer people stay in hospital, the more likely they are to 
get complications.  For example, one study has shown that every extra day in hospital reduces the 
muscle function of older people by 5%70. It is also expensive – it costs £250 per day71 to care for 
someone in an acute hospital bed and this money could be better used elsewhere.  
  

Page 47



  
 

22 
 

 
 
Some of the main causes of delay are people waiting for health care services in their homes, for a 
bed in a community hospital or for packages of social care72. These services are often unable to 
accept transfers or set up care packages at weekends, so people who are medically fit are stuck in 
hospital. An estimated one third of the people experiencing delayed discharge also have dementia – 
and care homes are often unable to accept people with dementia, especially at short notice73.  
 
Delays in discharge contribute to a poor experience for local people – especially at weekends– and 
can have a lasting negative impact on independent living. It also represents poor value for money 
because hospital services are being used by people who are medically fit to leave the hospital.  
 

There needs to be a focus on increasing and improving services in the community so that fewer 
people stay in hospital when they don’t need to be there. 

 

5.6. Local people are waiting too long to access some cancer services 
 
Improving outcomes for people with cancer is not just about higher survival rates. It is also about 
improving people’s experience of care and the quality of life for cancer survivors. It is important to 
promote lifestyle changes (such as stopping smoking, preventing obesity and reducing drinking) to 
reduce cases of preventable cancers. Around 1 in 10 people in north, east and west Devon are 
obese74 and almost a quarter of people in Plymouth smoke75. Screening means that cancer can be 
found and treated early and it is important that GPs are able to identify potential cancer as early as 
possible. If cancer is suspected it needs to be treated as soon as possible, and people want rapid 
access to services to reduce their worry. If cancer is discovered then people need access to the best 
possible care76.  
 
Many cancer services in north, east and west Devon are good, with high quality screening services77 
and GPs who tend to identify cancer early78. Longer-term survival rates for cancer are also slightly 
higher than the national average79.  However, when people are ill they need to be able to access high 
quality services as quickly as possible. Cancer waiting times are poor across all hospital providers in 

Page 48



  
 

23 
 

north, east and west Devon. For example, a quarter of people with symptoms of breast cancer have 
to wait more than two weeks to see a hospital specialist in west Devon80.  
 

 
 

The waiting times for cancer patients in hospitals are too long and need to be reduced.  

 

5.7. Local hospitals are finding it difficult to deliver services for some of the most 

seriously ill people 
 
Local hospitals are finding it difficult to provide care for some of the small number of most seriously 
ill people (around 10% of people who use hospital services81). Hospitals need senior doctors seven 
days a week to make sure that there is someone with sufficient skill and experience to spot 
problems and deal with them, and that care is effective when it is needed. Doctors, nurses and 
technical staff also need a minimum number of cases to maintain the high levels of expertise needed 
in these services. Specialist tests and equipment also need to be available 24 hours a day. Evidence 
shows that it is better to travel further for this more specialist care82.  
  
Mortality rates at hospitals in north, east and west Devon are within the expected range during the 
week and at weekends. However, there is a higher risk of death associated with being admitted to 
hospital at the weekend because there is not the same level of service 24 hours per day 7 days a 
week. Nationally, there are an estimated 5,74583 additional deaths from people being admitted to 
hospital at the weekend. It is therefore vital that services for the most acutely unwell patients are 
consistently delivered 24 hours per day 7 days per week. 
 
Everywhere within the NHS, hospitals are moving towards having more senior staff available more of 
the time. There are a number of services in north, east and west Devon that are small, and where 
senior staff and specialist tests and equipment are not available 24 hours a day. For example: 
 

 In stroke, there is now strong evidence that people who have a stroke need to have rapid 
access to a range of specialist interventions within the first 24 hours, in order to improve 

Page 49



  
 

24 
 

their chances of survival and minimise disability84. National standards are that eligible 
patients should be thrombolysed within 30 minutes85; this takes almost an hour in the best 
performing hospital in north, east and west Devon86. National guidelines also state that 
patients should be scanned within an hour of arriving at hospital87; in north, east and west 
Devon hospitals only do this for between 25% and 40% of patients88.  

 In maternity, around 1,500 women currently give birth in North Devon District Hospital89, 
this is one of the smallest maternity units in England. The unit provides a high quality service 
in many ways but finds it difficult to provide senior presence on the maternity ward. Senior 
doctors are currently only present on the ward for 40 hours a week (less than a quarter of 
the time)90. At the Royal Devon and Exeter, senior doctors are present for 60 hours a week 
whilst at Derriford Hospital, they are present for 98 hours a week. 

 In Accident & Emergency, senior doctors are only currently present in A&Es in north, east 
and west Devon for 12 -16 hours a day91. National evidence shows that delays to consultant 
reviews and a lack of senior medical involvement in patient care are consistently linked to 
poor patient outcomes92. 

 In children, the paediatric (children’s) unit at North Devon District Hospital is small with 
around 3,600 admissions a year, many of whom do not stay overnight93. There is a wealth of 
evidence to suggest that larger volumes of paediatric admissions lead to better quality and 
reduced time in hospital94. 

 

 
 
There is a particular issue for North Devon District Hospital which is one of the smallest acute 
hospitals in the country95. A number of its services are small without the presence of senior staff, or 
access to specialist equipment, 24 hours a day96. 
 
The answer is not simply to recruit more doctors, however. There is a shortage of doctors in some 
specialties such as paediatrics and A&E97, even if the workforce was available for paediatrics, local 
doctors would not see enough patients to maintain their skills98. 
 

Page 50



  
 

25 
 

Specialised services need to be configured so there is sufficient senior workforce to continue to 
provide high quality services. This needs to be balanced against the need to provide local access to 
services, where possible. 

 

5.8. Services could be run more efficiently across north, east and west Devon 
 
Although local providers have comparable levels of efficiency to hospitals of a similar type, all 
providers in north, east and west Devon could do more to reduce costs and run services more 
efficiently. However there appear to be inefficiencies in staffing, clinical supplies and agency spend, 
and these need to be addressed as soon as possible. 
 

Workforce 
The workforce is the single biggest cost in the NHS and social care – around three quarters of total 
costs99. So many things from the quality of the service to patient/client experience are dependent on 
the staff running services. And the staff in north, east and west Devon work very hard to deliver high 
quality services. 
 
However, there are some areas where staff may be able to provide the same quality of service but 
more efficiently. Compared to the best performing hospitals of a similar type, hospitals in north, east 
and west Devon have a much higher numbers of staff to perform similar levels of activity. This costs 
an extra £85m100 and it is important to make sure that all these staff are working as efficiently and 
effectively as possible, for example through the use of information technology.  

 
Locally, there is also a high spend on agency staff (staff used on a temporary basis to cover leave, 
sickness or vacant posts). Agency spend in local hospitals is between 5% and 10% of staff costs 
(£30m in total) for local hospitals and has been growing over the last few years101. Agency staff are 
more expensive than permanent staff and can reduce the quality of care and lead to a poor patient 
experience (for example, because the patient sees a different nurse every day).  
 

 
 

Page 51



  
 

26 
 

Clinical supplies 
The NHS buys lots of clinical supplies (such as pathology testing – the analysis of tissue and fluids) to 
use in its hospitals, GP surgeries and in the community. Because the NHS buys so many of these 
things, it can use its size to make sure that it gets good value for money, especially if organisations 
get together to increase their buying power. In north, east and west Devon, there is a big 
opportunity to do this. If they match the best performing hospitals of a similar type, hospitals in 
north, east and west Devon could potentially save £25m102. 
 

Community hospitals 
Although the number of community hospital beds in north, east and west Devon are already being 
reduced, there is still a lot of space in community hospitals that is not being used. In many 
community hospitals, up to half the bed spaces are not used, and, overall, one third of the total bed 
space is either under-used or empty103.  

 

 
 
The cost per bed for community hospitals is higher than the cost per bed for acute hospitals (up to 
£750 per day) and higher than average costs for a community hospital bed elsewhere (around £285 
per day)104. This space could be used for something else, such as other services or community 
spaces. There is also an opportunity to consolidate some of this space and spend the money 
elsewhere. 
 

Continuing care 
Continuing care is care that is arranged and paid for by the NHS for people who are not in 
hospital but have a “primary health need” (this is measured across a number of physical and mental 
health needs)105. In north, east and west Devon, the cost of these continuing care placements is 
£20,000 per person, which is much higher than in other similar areas. It is also much higher than the 
cost of caring for someone in a residential or nursing home locally and £5,000 per person more than 
the local council is paying for similar placements106.  
 

Page 52



  
 

27 
 

 
 
Reducing this cost to the same cost per person paid by the local authority for example, through 
better contract management, would save £7m per year, matching best performing areas with similar 
numbers of older people could save up to £21m107.  
 

Local services need to make sure staff are working as efficiently and effectively as possible, reduce 
spend on temporary staff, work together to buy clinical supplies at the best cost, make sure that 
all empty space is used, especially in community hospitals, and reduce the cost of continuing care. 

 

5.9. There are difficulties with recruiting and retaining staff at all levels making it 

hard to provide comprehensive and high quality services 
 
The quality of care and patient/client experience is dependent on having a well-trained, motivated 
and experienced workforce. Unfortunately, there are a number of issues around the workforce in 
north, east and west Devon which makes it harder for all providers to provide comprehensive and 
high quality services. 
 

An aging workforce 
The workforce in north, east and west Devon is getting older which is a problem because the NHS 
and social care lose trained and experienced workers when people retire. For example, 1 in 3 GPs108 
and 2 out of 5 nurses in practices, the community, mental health and social care are over the age of 
50109. As a result the NHS and social care in north, east and west Devon is likely to lose many of its 
most experienced members of staff in the next five to ten years. This challenge needs to be urgently 
addressed by creating new roles and thinking about new ways of working. 
 

High levels of vacancies, turnover and sickness 
There are high levels of vacancies, turnover and sickness amongst the workforce in north, east and 
west Devon. This is a problem because of the costs of recruiting and training new people, and 
covering vacancies with temporary staff. It is also a problem because of the pressure it puts on other 
staff to fill gaps and train new staff members, and the issues that arise from new members of staff 

Page 53



  
 

28 
 

who may not know local policies and processes. Sickness and turnover is particularly high for care 
workers and clinical support staff in north, east and west Devon with 1 in 5 leaving their job each 
year110. There are high vacancy rates for registered nurses in the community with 10% of posts 
vacant whilst almost two thirds of GPs intend to quit the NHS in the next 5 years111. There are also 
issues within acute hospitals – for example, in North Devon District Hospital, almost 12% of doctor 
posts are vacant112. Vacancy rates for hospital nurses are as high as 9% in north, east and west 
Devon113. This issue may in part be due to previous reductions in nurse training places114. These 
problems may partly be the cause of the agency spend and workforce inefficiencies identified in 
section 5.8. 
 
An additional allowance is given to the NHS to reflect the cost of employing staff locally (the market 
forces factor) – in north, east and west Devon. This may not reflect the difficulties in recruiting and 
retaining a skilled and experienced workforce in a rural and often remote area. 
 

Given the aging workforce, it is extremely important that everything is done to retain trained and 
experienced staff. The lack of experienced and trained staff means that careful thought needs to 
be given to how people work in the future.  

 

  

Page 54



  
 

29 
 

6. Opportunities for change and next steps 
 
Local health and social care services cannot continue to provide care as they do now. The needs of 
local people are changing, the way in which health and social care is provided is changing and there 
are increasing financial pressures. 
 
These are not just issues facing local health and social care services in north, east and west Devon. 
Recent reports identify similar issues nationally and call for standards of care to be improved 24 
hours a day, seven days per week. The issues associated with an older population, health 
inequalities, increasing numbers of people living with long-term conditions, increasing complexity 
and changes in medicine and technology need to be addressed elsewhere, just as they do locally. 
Other places are developing plans to address these issues or have already taken action 
 
It is tempting to argue simply that an injection of money would solve all the problems, but it would 
not. Even good services now will not be sustainable without change, and redesign is essential to 
maintain and improve clinical safety and quality, recruit and retain a sufficiently skilled and 
experienced workforce, and maintain patient/client satisfaction. Some services need to be 
centralised to provide better access to highly trained specialists and specialist equipment but 
services also need to be provided as locally and accessibly as possible, given limited resources.  
 
Health and social care leaders have therefore been working together to develop a vision for how 
they want health services to be designed and improved in a properly planned way. This vision of care 
is based on improvements and innovations which are already being made in many parts of the South 
West and in the rest of the country. So the changes are tried and tested ways of delivering 
healthcare –they work, they improve care and they can be delivered.  
 
Specifically, this means providing high quality services as locally as possible for everyone, whilst 
meeting the specific needs of a growing elderly population, and those with complex needs, as well as 
tackling inequalities in access to services and health outcomes that exist across north, east and west 
Devon. All of this needs to be achieved within available funding. 
 
Prevention is extremely important and investment in services that will stop people from becoming ill 
in the first place or that will intervene early and proactively to prevent further deterioration or more 
serious problems arising. 
 
People expect to be able to access services quickly and conveniently. People are also able to play 
more of a role in managing their own health. They want information and help on staying well in the 
first place. They want help to prevent disease from progressing with simple, everyday measures.  
 
People should be able to live as healthily and independently as possible and when they do need 
care, should be able to find out about available services easily, with the appropriate services then 
able to respond to their needs as effectively and efficiently as possible. Providing more care in the 
community, more proactively, can improve outcomes for local people and is a better use of limited 
resources.  
 
Local clinical, health and social care leaders believe that people in north, east and west Devon 
deserve services that are high quality and delivered as locally as possible. Local people should sit at 
the heart of a proactive, person-centred care system. Local people should be supported to take 
responsibility for their own health as much as possible. 
 
There are some things that can be done immediately. These are: 

Page 55



  
 

30 
 

 

 Reduce the amount of money being spent on continuing care by continuing to closely 
manage the eligibility criteria for those applying for continuing care and working with 
providers of continuing care to reduce the cost per person. This will make sure people are 
receiving the most suitable care as locally as possible, in some cases avoiding people being 
cared for elsewhere in the country, which can be more expensive.  

 Reduce the differences in the levels of elective (planned) care across north, east and west 
Devon by focussing on GPs who have high levels of referrals and specialties/providers where 
there are high levels of conversion from GP referrals to planned procedures. This will make 
sure that people are not undergoing potentially avoidable operations.  

 Joint procurement of back office supplies by working across providers to identify areas 
where services could be quickly re-tendered and where joint procurement would lead to 
cost savings. This will make sure that there is best value for money for back-office services.  

 Reduction in spending on agency (temporary staff) by developing joint processes for 
recruiting and deploying temporary staff and exploring possibilities for joint appointments. 
This will make sure that quality and patient experience are not compromised because staff 
are not permanent.  

 Reduction in length of stay in acute and community hospitals by reviewing the existing and 
future use of dedicated discharge co-ordinators and reviewing admission/discharge 
processes at weekends. This will make sure people are not staying in hospital when they 
could be at home. 

 
Health and social care leaders in north, east and west Devon are committed to working together 
more effectively to secure these improvements. This means that for 2016/17, there will be a clear 
set of shared plans in each of these areas which will be driven forward collectively. The Success 
Regime will not result in duplicated or inconsistent plans but will support processes already 
underway which are aimed at delivering real improvements immediately. 
 
In the longer-term (over the next five years), local clinical, health and social care leaders believe that 
local services can be made sustainable by: 
 
1. Promoting self-care and management, peer support, health promotion, education and individual 
responsibility. This means providing people with the information and tools to keep themselves 
healthy and to manage their own health. This includes a healthy start for children with a particular 
focus on vulnerable children, and supporting adults to live well and older people to age well. 
 
2. Delivering excellent care as close to home as possible. This includes proactive support in primary 
care, less reliance on beds and more home-based services; a greater focus on people with dementia; 
more planned care provided outside of hospitals; better end of life pathways; better care for people 
with a long-term condition and a mental illness; and the very best specialist care, 24 hours a day, 7 
days a week. 
 
3. Having more efficient services which make the best use of all staff with an emphasis on workforce 
development including training and education, use information technology and data sharing to 
support the workforce in delivering services as efficiently as possible, spend less on temporary staff, 
work together to buy supplies at the best cost and make sure that all the empty and under-used 
space is better used (particularly community hospitals). 
 
4. Making sure that there are high quality, accessible services for emergency and urgent care, 
women and children, planned care and cancer. 
 

Page 56



  
 

31 
 

Finally, the success regime has so far focussed on organisations in north, east and west Devon but 
consideration must now be given to some key issues beyond these geographic boundaries. Any 
consultation process which aims to propose substantial changes to services must make sense as a 
whole and so the following issues will need to be considered in the next stage: 
 

 Highly specialised services need to be planned for a much bigger population covering the 
whole of Devon and Cornwall, and possibly beyond. 

 Some people from outside north east and west Devon use services from providers within 
and their needs will have to be considered. 

 Some people who live in north east and west Devon go elsewhere including to neighbouring 
providers for their care and the services they receive will have to be considered. 

 
These complex issues will need to be fully incorporated into the next stages of work. 
 
There is much to be proud of in north, east and west Devon and there are many services that are 
already good. The next six months will be about local people and care staff working together to 
discuss and plan how services can be redesigned, and start to make changes where possible, so that 
there are great care services, across the board, for all local people. This may require formal 
consultation with local people and it might mean that organisations look different to what they are 
now. But if there is no change then the good services will become average and the problems that are 
already here will become worse. The reality is that vital NHS and social care services in north, east 
and west Devon need to undergo a major transformation and cultural change over the next few 
years to meet these challenges. This will improve outcomes for the population of north, east and 
west Devon, and provide people with the best possible affordable care available today, according to 
latest best practice, latest thinking and latest technology.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 57



  
 

32 
 

Endnotes 
                                                           
1
 Office for National statistics, mid-year estimates 2014, NEW Devon CCG 

2
 Office for National Statistics, various years 

3
 NEW Devon CCG Annual Report, 2014 

4
 Dartmoor National Park Authority, General information Factsheet, 2009 

5
 NEW Devon CCG, Devon County Council, Plymouth City Council, NHS England 

6
 Office for National Statistics, subnational population predictions, 2015 

7
 Estimated by Nuffield Trust http://www.nuffieldtrust.org.uk/blog/fact-or-fiction-demand-gp-appointments-driving-crisis-

general-practice for England, 2013 apportioned to NEW Devon CCG using ONS 2014 mid-year population estimates. 
8
 Success Regime Trust data returns, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 

9
 www.nhs.uk - services 

10
 AA route planner, November 2015 

11
 NHS England website, https://www.england.nhs.uk/2015/06/03/devon-success-regime/ 

12
 Devon Partnership Trust, Mental Health Matters, Winter 2015 

13
 Devon County Council submission to Success Regime, 2015 

14
 Plymouth Community Healthcare website, December 2015 

15
 Plymouth City Council, Strategic Director for People  

16
 Trust Data Returns, 2015 and Devon County Council Website, 2015 

17
 Office for National Statistics, various years 

18
 Public Health Outcomes Framework Data Tool, Public Health England, Public Health Observatories – Public Health 

profiles, smoking 2014, alcohol consumption 2013/14 
19

 Monitor Ready Reckoner, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 
20

 Monitor Ready Reckoner, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 
21

 Office for National Statistics, Subnational population projections, 2012 based projections (2014 versus 2021) 
22

 Office for National Statistics, Subnational population projections, 2013 based projections  
23

 Karen Barnett, Stewart W Mercer, Michael Norbury, Graham Watt, Sally Wyke, Bruce Guthrie:  Epidemiology of 
multimorbidity and implications for healthcare, research, and medical education: A cross-sectional study,  The Lancet, 
Volume 380, Issue 9836, Pages 37 - 43, 7 July 2012 
24

 Success Regime Trust data returns, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 
25

 Care home residents in Devon, Plymouth and Torbay – a needs assessment part 1, April 2014  
26

 Care home residents in Devon, Plymouth and Torbay – a needs assessment part 1, April 2014  
27

 Dementia in the acute hospital: prospective cohort study of prevalence and mortality, Sampson, E. L. et al, The British 
Journal of Psychiatry Jun 2009, 195 
28

 Devon acuity audit 2015  
29

 Monitor Ready Reckoner, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 
30

 Quality and Outcomes Framework (QOF) for April 2013 - March 2014, England 
31

 Sentinel Stroke National Audit programme 2014/15 
32

 Karen Barnett, Stewart W Mercer, Michael Norbury, Graham Watt, Sally Wyke, Bruce Guthrie:  Epidemiology of 
multimorbidity and implications for healthcare, research, and medical education: A cross-sectional study,  The Lancet, 
Volume 380, Issue 9836, Pages 37 - 43, 7 July 2012 
33

 Department of Health, Closing the Gap: priorities for essential change in mental health, 2014 
34

 Quality and Outcomes Framework (QOF) for April 2013 - March 2014, Mental Health Minimum Data Set  April 2014 – 
March 2015 
35

 Serious mental disorders defined as Schizophrenia, Bipolar illness and other psychoses – Monitor Ready Reckoner, 
Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 
36 

Public Health Outcomes Framework Data Tool 2012/13 
37

 No health without public mental health: The case for action, The Royal College of Psychiatrists, 2010  
38

 Improving Outcomes: A Strategy for Cancer, Department of Health, 2011 
39

 Monitor Ready Reckoner, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 
40

 E.g. The Joint Planning Letter from Head of Local Government Association, Head of Trust Development Authority, Head 
of Monitor, Head of NHS England, Strategic and operational planning in the NHS, Nov 2013 
41

 Success Regime Trust data returns, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 
42

 Success Regime Trust data returns, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 – sums to more than £1.9bn because this is the total of 
provider and commissioner deficits so some money is counted twice. 
43

 Calculation by RD&E, 2015 
44

 Based on a four year average life expectancy 2009 to 2013, Devon JSNA, 2015 
45

 Fair Society, Healthy Lives, Marmot, 2010 
46

 Fair Society, Healthy Lives, Marmot, 2010 
47

 Public Health Outcomes Framework Data Tool 2012/13 
48

 Office for National Statistics, 2011 (14.83%) 

Page 58

http://www.thelancet.com/journals/lancet/issue/vol380no9836/PIIS0140-6736(12)X6028-8
http://www.thelancet.com/journals/lancet/issue/vol380no9836/PIIS0140-6736(12)X6028-8


  
 

33 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                     
49

 E.g. Shi, L., Starfeld, B., et al, Income inequality, primary care, and health indicators, J Fam Pract. 1999 Apr;48(4):275-84 
50

 Department for Communities and local government, Index of Multiple Deprivation, 2015 
51

 NHS England GP Patient Survey GP patient survey, 2013-14 (an additional 14 GPs per 100,000 population) 
52

 South West AHSN; July 2013 to June 2014, using HES data 
53

 Success Regime Trust data returns, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 
54

 NHS Call to Action, Department of Health, 2013 
55

 National End of Life Care Intelligence Network 2014/15: data is for period 2011-2013 
56

 For example, Dying for change, Demos, 2010 
57

 Success Regime stakeholder interviews and workshops, November 2015 
58

 Over 30% - DEVON HEALTH AND WELLBEING OUTCOMES REPORT 2015 and DEVON PUBLIC HEALTH OUTCOMES REPORT 
2015 using national public health outcomes tool Q3-4 2014/15 
59

 NEW Devon CCG CAMHS transformation fund submission to NHS England, October 2015 
60

 Long term conditions and mental health: the cost of co-morbidities, Naylor et al, King’s Fund, 2012 
61

 Long term conditions and mental health: the cost of co-morbidities, Naylor et al, King’s Fund, 2012 
62

 Long term conditions and mental health: the cost of co-morbidities, Naylor et al, King’s Fund, 2012 
63

 Long term conditions and mental health: the cost of co-morbidities, Naylor et al, King’s Fund, 2012 
64

 Long term conditions and mental health: the cost of co-morbidities, Naylor et al, King’s Fund, 2012 
65

 Devon acuity audit 2015, Figure 3.. 
66

 Success Regime Trust data returns, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 
67

 Devon Acuity Audit 2015 (RD&E 35.7, N Devon 40.7, Plymouth 26.6) 
68

 Success Regime Trust data returns, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 
69

 Devon Acuity Audit 2015 
70

 Curr Opin Clin Nutr Metab Care 2010 January; 13 (1): 34-39 
71

 Hospital Episode Statistics 2012/2013      
72

 Devon Acuity Audit 2015 
73

 Devon acuity audit 2015 (RD&E 25%, NDH 39%, NDH community 48%, Plymouth 22%) 
74

 Quality and Outcomes Framework (QOF) for April 2013 - March 2014, England 
75

 Public Health Outcomes Framework Data Tool, Public Health England, Public Health Observatories – Public Health 
profiles, 2014 
76

 Improving Outcomes: A Strategy for Cancer, Department of Health, 2011 
77

 NHS cancer screening programme, 2013/14 
78

 Public Health England, Cancer Commissioning Toolkit average of Q2 2014/13 to Q1 2014/15, NHS Primary care web tool 
2015 
79

 ONS, cancer survival rates for people diagnosed 1997 to 2012 and followed up 2013 (NEW Devon CCG) 
80

 NHS England, Cancer Waiting time Statistics 2014/15 by provider 
81

 Shaping a Healthier Future Decision Making Business Case Fig 12.1 (9%) 
82

 Academy of Medical Royal Colleges, 2012, Seven Day Consultant Present Care, Royal College of Paediatrics and Child 
Health, 2012, Consultant Delivered Care RCS, 2011, Emergency surgery: standards for unscheduled surgical care 
RCS, Delivering high quality surgical services for the future, 2006 
83

 Higher risk of death associated with weekend hospitalisation, August 2015, Department of Health 
84

 E.g. National clinical guidelines for stroke, Royal College of Physicians, 2012 
85

 E.g. National clinical guidelines for stroke, Royal College of Physicians, 2012 
86

 Sentinel Stroke National Audit programme 2014/15 
87

 E.g. National clinical guidelines for stroke, Royal College of Physicians, 2012 
88

 Sentinel Stroke National Audit programme 2014/15 
89

 Success Regime Trust data returns, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 
90

 Success Regime Trust data returns, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 
91

 Success Regime Trust data returns, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 
92

 NCEPOD, Emergency admissions: a step in the right direction, 2007; Nafsi et al, Audit of deaths less than a week after 
admission through and emergency department, Emergency Medicine Journal, 2007, 24, 691-5; NCEPOD, Caring to the end? 
Review of patients who died within 4 days of hospital admission, 2009; Royal College of Surgeons, Emergency surgery: 
standards for unscheduled surgical care, 2011; Royal College of Physicians, Acute medical care: the right person in the right 
setting first time, 2007 
93

 Hospital Episode Statistics (FCEs on specialty code 420), 2014/15 
94

 E.g. Bratton, Haberkern, Waldhausen, Swain, Allison, Intussusception: hospital size and risk of surgery, Pediatrics, 2001; 
107(2); 299-303; Smink, Finkelstein, Kleinman, Fishman, The effect of hospital volume of  pediatric appendectomies on the 
misdiagnosis of appendicitis in children, Pediatrics, 2004; 113;1823 
95

 Monitor LHE desktop datapack, August 2015 
96

 Success Regime Trust data returns, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 
97

 Keogh, Transforming Urgent and Emergency care services in England: end of phase 1 report, Department of Health, 2013 
98

 Workforce census, Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health, published online 2013 
99

 Success Regime Trust data returns, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 

Page 59

http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/10229252


  
 

34 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                     
100

 Across medical, nursing, ST&T, non-clinical staff. Data sources Monitor FT Finance Analysis Tool; Trust financial 
statements 2013/14   Success Regime Data Return. Compared to average of 3 top performing trusts in peer group. 
101

 Monitor FT Finance Analysis Tool; Trust financial statements   Success Regime Data Returns 
102

 Monitor FT Finance Analysis Tool; Trust financial statements 2013/14   Success Regime Data Return from providers 
103

 Northern Devon Healthcare Trust and team analysis, 2015 
104

 Intermediate bed community reference cost 2014/15 
105

 NHS England, http://www.nhs.uk/chq/Pages/2392.aspx?CategoryID=68 
106

 NHS England Allocations 2014/15; NHS England Continuing Case benchmarking data for 2014/15; data provided by NEW 
Devon CCG 
107

 NHS England Allocations 2014/15; NHS England Continuing Case benchmarking data for 2014/15; data provided by NEW 
Devon CCG 
108

 HSCIC General and Personal Medical Services, England 2013-14 
109

 Success Regime Trust data returns, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 
110

 Success Regime Trust data returns, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 
111

 HSCIC General and Personal Medical Services, England 2013-14, South West AHSN analysis, 2015 
112

 Success Regime Trust data returns, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 
113

 Success Regime Trust data returns, Carnall Farrar analysis, 2015 (Plymouth 9.1%) 
114

 Multi professional education and training budget monitoring returns, Department of Health (in Hansard, 29 November 
2013, c472W) 

Page 60



 0 Sustainability & Transformation Plan (STP) 
Wider Devon  
 
4th November 2016 

 
Name of footprint and number: Wider Devon (37) 

Region: South 
Nominated lead of the footprint: Angela Pedder,  

Lead Chief Executive 
 

Contact details 
angela.pedder@nhs.net 

l.nicholas@nhs.net 

Organisations within Devon’s STP footprint 
 
Northern, Eastern and Western Devon Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), South Devon and Torbay CCG, Plymouth Hospitals NHS 
Trust, Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Trust, Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust, Torbay and South Devon NHS Trust, South West 
Ambulance Service Trust, Devon Partnership NHS Trust, NHS England, Circa 160 GP practices, Virgin Care, Devon County Council, 
Plymouth City Council, Torbay Council, Livewell Southwest CIC, Devon Doctors, Healthwatch (Devon, Plymouth and Torbay) and Care UK. 
 
The NHS in Devon understands its need to meet all relevant statutory obligations when undertaking a change programme and nothing in 
this report should be taken to commit the NHS to a particular decision without proper consideration of those obligations. 

P
age 61



 1 Content 

Introduction and context  

Triple Aim 

Governance 

Priorities 

Enablers 

 
• Plan on a page 
• Introduction & context 
• Case for change 
• Vision 

 
 
 

• Triple aim (summary) 
• Our priorities (summary) 
• Critical decisions 

 
 

• Programme approach 
• Governance arrangements 

• Prevention  & early intervention 
• Integrated care model 
• Primary care 
• Mental health & learning disabilities 

• Workforce 
• Communications & engagement 
• Estate 
• Information management and technology (IM&T) 

Introduction 

• Population health & wellbeing gap 
• Experience of care gap 
• Cost effectiveness gap 

• Acute hospital & specialist 
services 

• Productivity 
• Children & young people 

P
age 62



 2 

Phase 3 Promote prevention and early intervention:  Fully Implement the integrated care model 
• Build equitable mental health and emotional well being capacity 
• Mobilise new model of fully integrated health and social care, primary care and local community 

support in all localities and reduce bed stock 
• Realign use of resources to achieve population and service equity 
• Workforce redesign and capacity building to support care model delivery and to promote economic 

growth and resilience 
• Commence specialist and acute reconfigurations implementation  

Partners across the wider Devon health and care community are united in a single ambition and shared purpose to create a clinically, 
socially and financially sustainable health and care system that will improve the health, wellbeing and care of the populations we serve. 

2016/17 

2020/21 

2017/18 

2018/19 

2019/20 

Phase 1 of clinical and financial recovery plan to reduce overspending 2016/17. Engage, design and 
consult on a new model of integrated care to ensure an equal spread of services across Devon and 
reduce reliance on bed-based care. Deliver early win initiatives to progress 1st phase financial recovery. 

Phase 2 to start planning and implementing the longer term clinically and financially sustainable 
models of care 
Engage, design and consult on reconfigured new models of care for mental health, acute and specialist 
services to secure clinically sustainable services, reduce duplication and variation and improve user 
experience. 

Over five years we will 

achieve clinical and financial 

performance and outcomes 

improvement by….. 

Capture the benefits of reduced variations in care and provision, reduced health inequalities, 
enabling people to access services that achieve better outcomes. Also enable the care providers to 
better manage demand for their services – right care, right place 

Clinical and financial sustainability secured  
Improvements in health/patient experience outcomes demonstrated 

Key priorities 
Prevention  

& early 
intervention 

Integrated 
models of care 

Primary care Mental health 
Children & 

young people 

Acute hospital 
& specialist 

services 
Productivity 

Our commitment 

Plan on a page   Introduction 
Triple aim 
challenge : 

• Improve population health and wellbeing 
• Experience of  care 
• Cost effectiveness per head of population 

P
age 63



3 
Welcome to the Wider Devon Sustainability & Transformation Plan 
(STP)                                                                                         October 2016 

Introduction 

Aspiration 

The STP sets out our commitment to transforming care 
to deliver the best possible health outcomes for our local 
population; shifting our model of care so that more 
people are cared for in out of hospital settings - through 
prevention, more proactive care, and new models of care 
delivery – and reducing reliance on secondary care. We 
will take a place-based approach which links health, 
education, housing and employment to economic and 
social wellbeing for our communities through joint 
working of statutory partners and the voluntary and 
charitable sectors. 
 
 

This Plan describes how people residing in wider Devon 
will experience safe, sustainable, integrated, local 
support by 2021. It shows how we will deliver a major 
programme of transformational change and 
improvement across wider Devon starting from 2016/17. 
This change will be enabled by engaging our 
communities, investment in technology, changes in 
workforce and ensuring that where estate is required, it 
is fit for purpose. 
 
 

The challenges we face are significant. Whilst we may all 
agree on the goal of achieving clinically and financially 
sustainable care services, there will be many views on 
how we get there.                                    
                                                                                                                                                
 
 
 
 

We will be encouraging the community to work with us 
to jointly understand the challenge and develop 
solutions together.  
 
 
The STP is a strategic plan that covers the whole of wider 
Devon, including its three local authorities and two 
clinical commissioning group areas. This plan necessarily 
focusses on a limited number of key transformational 
priorities which will deliver improvements to care 
services over the next 2-4 years in response to the 
significant financial and clinical sustainability challenges 
identified in the case for change.  
 

We have identified seven high priority areas: Prevention; 
integrated care model; primary care; mental health; 
acute hospital and specialist services, children & young 
people and productivity. This STP does not replace the 
many other service plans already in development or 
delivery within the health and care system, but overtime 
will ensure all plans align. 
 
These ambitious plans will respond to the growing 
physical and mental health needs of people in their 
communities to ensure a future integrated network of 
support that is safe, sustainable and affordable and that 
enables people to live their lives well and independently.  
 
 

Challenges 

Scope 

Framework 

Growing needs 

P
age 64



4 Context 

Wider Devon has a resident population of around 1,160,000 within 
the 3 local authority areas of Devon County Council, Plymouth City 
Council and Torbay Council. Just over half of the populating live in 
urban communities, and the remainder in rural communities.   
 
The NEW Devon CCG area has been part of a Success Regime since 
2015 and, with South Devon & Torbay, both CCGs have come 
together to form a single strategic planning footprint with the local 
authorities in order to address together a common set of 
significant financial and service challenges around health and care. 
 
 
This Plan is a work in progress that has been prioritised to provide 
a framework for focus on activities that will make the biggest 
initial difference to our population’s health outcomes and financial 
recovery. There is a strong set of system governance arrangements 
in place that are enabling the 10 statutory organisations in Devon 
to work collaboratively to ensure the changes we make will benefit 
our patients and the health and social care system as a whole, not 
just individual organisations. At the heart of our Plan is a new 
model of integrated care that will reduce reliance on bed-based 
care and enable people to live healthy independent lives for 
longer, closer to where they live. 
 
 

Context Wider Devon STP footprint 

Approach 

Whilst we will have one Plan for wider Devon, our approach will 
also ensure that local plans setting out how we deliver the 
common goals can be adapted to reflect local needs and existing 
services. We will be involving communities and our staff in doing 
this. 

Context and Approach 

We will undertake a process of wide stakeholder engagement 
on the content of the STP and involve citizens and patients in 
its ongoing development. For this to be meaningful, it will be 
done both at the level of this overarching plan, and 
separately for the key areas of strategic change that we are 
proposing. 

P
age 65



 5 

Services in Devon must change in order to become clinically and financially sustainable, and the key reasons for this 
are highlighted in the case for change published in February 2016: 

• People are living longer and will require more support from the health and care system. In excess of 280,000 local 
people (23% of the population), including 13,000 children, are living with one or more long term conditions 

• We need to respond better to the high levels of need and complexity in some parts of the population 

• Some services such as stroke, paediatrics and maternity are not clinically or financially sustainable in the long 
term without changes to the way they are delivered across wider Devon 

• There is a difference of 15 years in life expectancy across wider Devon and differences in health outcomes – or 
‘health inequalities’ – between some areas, particularly Plymouth 

• Spending per person on health and social care differs markedly between the locality areas and is 10% less in the 
most deprived areas 

• Mental health services are not as accessible and as available as they need to be which drives people to access 
other forms of care which doesn’t always meet their needs. People with a mental health condition have poorer 
health outcomes than other groups 

• There is an over reliance on bed-based care - every day over 600 people in Wider Devon are medically fit to leave 
hospital inpatient care but can not for a variety of reasons 

• The care home sector is struggling to meet increasing demand and complexity of need 

• Almost a quarter of local GPs plan to leave the NHS in 5 years and there are significant pressures on primary care 
services. Some other care services are particularly fragile due to high levels of consultant, nursing, social work or 
therapy vacancies 

• Local health and social care services are under severe financial pressure, and health & social care services are 
likely to be £557million in deficit in 2020/21 if nothing changes 

Case for Change Context 

P
age 66



6 

We will operate as an aligned health and care system, to be a major force and trustworthy partners for the continual 
improvement of health and care for people living in Devon, Plymouth and Torbay. We will address the NHS Five Year 
Forward View three key aims to improve population health & wellbeing, experience of care and cost effectiveness 
per head of population. 

Mission  
We will focus everything we do 
on improving: 

Strategic Objectives 
We will deliver:  
 

Values 
We will act, behave and be held 
to account for: 
 

• Our population’s 
health & wellbeing 

• The experience of care 
• The cost effectiveness 

per head of population 
 

These mission statements 
underpin the NHS’ Five 
Year Forward View and 
are referred to as the 
‘triple aims’. 

• Putting the patient/person first 
• Operating without boundaries 
• Working with speed and agility 
• Strong teamwork 
• Embracing innovation 
• Relentless focus on population 

benefit and user experience  

• Excellence in service delivery 
• Improved health and well being 

for populations and 
communities 

• Integrated care for people 
• Improved care for people 
• Empowered users who are 

experts in managing their care 
needs 

Deliver better and more equal outcomes for more people and do it sustainably in a more joined up way harnessing 
the value of partners coming together to tackle problems as a collective. We will do this as efficiently as we can, 
within the financial resources available to us. 

Aim and Statement of Purpose 

The Challenge for Wider Devon 

Our shared vision Context 

P
age 67



 7 

• I will take responsibility to stay well and independent as long as possible in my community 

•  I can plan my own care with people who work together to understand me and my family 

•  The team supporting me allow me control and bring services together for outcomes important to me 

•  I can get help at an early stage to avoid a crisis at a later time 

•  I tell my story once and I always know who is coordinating my care 

•  I have the information and help I need to use it, to make decisions about my care and support 

•  I know what resources are available for my care and support, and I can determine how they are used 

•  I receive high quality services that meet my needs, fit around my circumstances and keep me safe 

•  I experience joined up and seamless care – across organisational and team boundaries 

•  I can expect my services to be based on the best available evidence to achieve the best outcomes for me 

From where we are To where we want to be 

From patients… 

From care settings… 

From organisations… 

From what’s the matter with you… 

From illness management… 

…to people 

…to places and communities 

…to networks of care and support 

…to what matters to you 

…to wellness support 

Public engagement in developing our shared vision 

 Our plans are designed to deliver on a series of “I” statements developed by local people: 

Context 

P
age 68



 8 

• Improve overall health by  increasing focus on preventing or avoiding ill-health and proactively 
responding when required 

• Improve outcomes for people with mental health problems 

• Improve outcomes for people with two or more long term conditions 

• Address challenges of deprivation and funding inequality across wider Devon  

Improve population 
health & wellbeing 

Experience of care 

Cost effectiveness per 
head of population 

• Reduce reliance on bed-based care and the associated harm to patients of long lengths of stay in 
hospital through investment in community, primary care and  other supporting care services  

• introduce an innovative, fully integrated model of care that enables people to stay well and 
independent within their communities 

• Deliver consistently safe and high quality acute care by introducing clinically sustainable service 
configurations 

• Develop a well-trained, motivated and caring workforce that is empowered to deliver joined-up care 
and support to the communities they serve, including support to voluntary carers. 

• Develop a culture of safety and continuous service improvement 

• Reduce over-reliance on use of hospital beds to release around £90m 

• Invest in community, primary and social care services to support implementation of the integrated 
care model and improvements in care 

• Improve effectiveness of spend and productivity in all service areas to release around £300m 
(consisting of 2% annual provider efficiency and other additional efficiency gains) 

• Ensure progress towards equitable funding for the most deprived communities 

• Effective care market management and efficiency of spend 

 

 

Our aspirations against the Five Year Forward View three key aims Triple Aim 

P
age 69



 9 

Triple Aim 

• Action to tackle the top five 
causes of death in under 75s 

• Make sure all plans and 
priorities have a focus on 
preventing ill health 

• Tackle place-based socio 
economic health determinants 

• Build community 
resourcefulness 

• Develop workforce skills in 
prevention 

• Ensure clinical sustainability of 
services across wider Devon 

• Review high priority services: 
• Stroke services review 
• Urgent and Emergency 

Care review 
• Maternity /Paediatrics/ 

Neonatal service review 
• Review small & vulnerable 

specialties 
 
 
 
 

• Improve the cost-effectiveness 
of the care delivered per head 
of population 

• Implement Carter’s 
recommendations in ‘Reducing 
Variations’ report 

• Rationalise the ‘back-office’ 
services 

• Procurement efficiencies in 
clinical supplies and drugs 

• Review spending on continuing 
health care (CHC) 

 
 
 

• Promoting health through 
integration 

• Empower communities to take 
active roles in their health and 
wellbeing 

• Locality-based care model 
design and implementation 

• Shift resources to community 
from hospital 

• Health & Social care 
integration 

• Ensure our services meet local 
needs 

• Maximise the effectiveness of 
mental health spending to 
achieve better outcomes 

• Improve mental illness 
prevention in primary care 

• Improve provision for people 
with severe, long term mental 
illness  and those who also 
have physical health problems 

 
 
 
 

 

• Developing integrated 
GP/primary care 

• Delivering the GP forward 
view 

• Supporting general practice 
development to be fit for the 
future 

• Work towards delegated 
commissioning 
 
 
 

Integrated care model 
Mental health & learning 

disabilities 

Acute hospital & specialist 
services 

Productivity 

Prevention & early 
intervention 

 primary care 

Devon’s objectives for the Five Year Forward View (5YFV) focus on achieving financial and clinical sustainability and addressing key health 
and financial inequalities by 2021.  The initial proposals below will be further developed and extended over time to make sure they achieve 
our key objectives 

• Ensure seamless support and 
access 

• Ensure high quality, effective 
and rapid response of services 

• Enhance effective 
collaboration between adult 
and childrens’ services  
 

Children & young people 

• Workforce Stability, Workforce 
Redesign, Workforce 
Development  

• Estates Strategy 
• Information: Digital Road Map 
• Communications & 

engagement  
• Organisational Development: 

Towards accountable care 
systems  

• IM&T – improving clinical 
decision making 
 
 

Enablers 

1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 

STP priorities and headline solutions Triple Aim 

P
age 70



 10 

 
 
• Ensure that plans reflect the 

needs of local communities 
 
• Engage fully with our 

stakeholders on future 
direction of travel and 
proposed changes to services 
particularly where this 
impacts on the number of 
beds available, community 
hospital closures, and 
changes to specific acute 
services. 
 

• Formulate our change 
proposals and agree the 
future configuration of 
commissioning and provision 
functions to best support 
delivery. 

 
• Ensure that implementation 

plans rapidly take shape to 
ensure we are ready for 
delivery in 2017/18 
 

 

During the next phase of 
planning we will:  

 
 
 

Financial recovery and meeting future predicted increases in demand are 
predicated on implementing an integrated care model that is significantly less 
reliant on bed-based care. The changes we are proposing will result in a 
significant reduction in the number of acute and community beds needed 
across wider Devon by 2021 where up to 600 people are being cared for 
inappropriately at present. As we change the model of care these beds will no 
longer be required and this then releases resource to invest in improved care 
and achieve clinical and financial sustainability. 
 
To facilitate implementation of the care model and release funding to invest in 
more ambulatory care provision in community and home based settings the 
CCGs are currently publicly consulting: 
• NEW Devon CCG is engaging on proposals for the overall strategic 

direction of travel and provision changes and on the components of new 
models of care. Public consultation on specific proposals to close a number 
of community hospital beds in the eastern locality commenced on 7 
October 2016. 

• In South Devon & Torbay implementation of the care model as set out in 
the Integrated Care organisation (ICO) business case is pushing ahead with 
consultation on community services transformation including proposals for 
closure of four community hospitals. This started in September 2016. 

 
Proposals are in development for some changes to the acute care model 
across Devon’s STP footprint to improve care and outcomes. There are a 
number of specialties that need to change to address future clinical 
sustainability issues, including: stroke, emergency services including A&E, 
paediatrics, maternity, neonatology and some smaller specialties. These may 
also require public consultation and preparations for undertaking the review 
will begin in October 2016. 
 
We anticipate that we can make further progress over the five year period 
with developing the new care model and this may lead to further changes to 
how and where care is delivered. We are committed to fully engaging (and 
consulting as required) staff and communities on these proposals. 

Critical decisions that deliver the plan Triple Aim 

P
age 71



11 Triple Aim 

The Public Health and Joint strategic needs assessment (JSNA)* key considerations underpinning the plan 

An ageing and 
growing population 

Giving every child 
the best start in life 

and ensuring 
children are ready 

for school 

Balancing access to 
services in both 
urban and rural 

localities 

Complex patterns of 
deprivation linked to 

earlier onset of 
health problems in 

more deprived areas 
(10-15 life year life 

expectancy gap) 

Housing issues (low 
incomes / high 

costs/ poor quality 
in private rental 

sector) 

Shifting to a 
prevention and 

early intervention 
focus 

Poor mental health 
and wellbeing, 

contributed to by 
social isolation and 

loneliness 

Ensuring services 
are resourced to 

meet the needs of 
people particularly 

those with long-
term conditions, 
multi-morbidity, 

mental health and 
frailty  

Poor health 
outcomes caused by 

modifiable 
behaviours 

Unpaid care and the 
impact of caring on 
carers’ health and 

wellbeing 

* The Joint strategic needs assessment (JSNA) is an annual analysis of population health needs and demography undertaken by each local authority. 

It informs our understanding of the health of the population, disease and condition prevalence and causes of death. This helps us to plan health and 
care services for the future. 

Health and wellbeing challenges we must address 

There is a real opportunity to make significant improvements in the physical and mental health, wellbeing and care for the 
population and communities. This Plan is a work in progress and provides a planning framework that will evolve as we 
collate the evidence base and develop proposals for future improvements to the way we deliver care. We plan to share 
our learning to benefit communities beyond wider Devon.  

P
age 72



 12 
Health and wellbeing opportunities are based on our understanding 
of targeted population segments across the wider Devon  

This segmentation is based on forecast spend and population in a do nothing scenario. Opportunities have been identified based on the care segments to address the health and 
wellbeing gaps and public health and JSNA priorities 

Triple Aim 

Health and Care Segmentation Devon 20/21 

JR – integrated NEW & South 

Sources: ONS subnational projections CCG level, Data returns from NEW Devon CCG, SDT CCG, RD&E, PHT, T&SD, NDH, Devon CC, Plymouth council, Torbay council, QOF 13/14, 
Carnall Farrar analysis 

Population, 
Thousands 

Total spend, 
£m 

Spend per 
head 

P
age 73



 13 

The case for change summary shows that care in Devon is generally high quality but is inconsistent and with variable outcomes. The 
principles and design features in this Plan will drive improvement in an integrated manner, delivering benefits of standardisation to 
reduce variation whilst ensuring our models are tailored to the clinical needs of individuals and communities. This will drive improved 
achievement of national performance standards, patient and staff experience, safety, service line resilience and clinical effectiveness and 
outcomes. 

Creating a whole system culture of continuous quality improvement and evaluation across the footprint, sharing best practice, 
learning and spreading the use of recognised improvement methodologies 

Ensuring parity of esteem and equality of access for people with learning disability, poor mental health and looked after children 

Meeting national standards for primary, acute and specialist care with particular focus on child and adult mental health 

Achieving a minimum of good in Care Quality Commission (CQC) assessments in all services and making sure that services assessed 
by the CQC as inadequate or requires improvement are supported to improve rapidly and sustainably. 

Reduce harm associated with delayed discharge from bed based care 

To support a culture of high quality safe care and continuous improvement by: 

• Safeguarding adults, young people and children through joined up safeguarding teams and processes 

• Systematically learning from mistakes and sharing best practice 

• Raising awareness and early identification of sepsis at all clinical interfaces 

• Creating a positive culture of antibiotic guardianship in primary and secondary care, helping to reduce antimicrobial 
resistance and improve 

• Supporting the whole system to reduce avoidable deaths, morbidity and harm  

• Ensuring that people who are cared for in hospitals and residential settings are safeguarded, have personalised 
care plans and live in places where standards are high, and regularly monitored. 

The care and quality challenges we must address Triple Aim 

P
age 74



14 

NB:Virgincare Childrens Services CQC assessment not available 

Care and quality gaps in the wider Devon heath and social care system will be addressed over 
the period of this plan. Current performance is variable across the system ranging from 
inadequate to outstanding. Our aim is to reduce variation. 

Inadequate 

Requires 
improvement 

Good 

Outstanding 

Not assessed 

CQC full inspection 
assessment 

Safe 

Effective 

Caring 

Responsive 

Well led 

Overall 

SHMI data 

STP footprint 

Devon 
Partnership 
NHS Trust 

Northern 
Devon 

Healthcare 
NHS Trust 

Plymouth 
Hospitals NHS 

Trust 

Royal Devon  
& Exeter  
NHS FT 

Torbay &  
South Devon 

NHS FT 

Key areas for care and quality improvement: comparison of CQC 
assessments of NHS providers 

Latest CQC inspection report 18.01.2016 11.09.2014 21.07.2015 09.02.2016 07.06.2016 

SHMI Data 03/15-04/16 03/15-04/16 03/15-04/16 03/15-04/16 03/15-04/16 

Triple Aim 

Livewell 
Southwest 

CIC 

19.10.2016 

- 

South West 
Ambulance 

FT 

06.10.2016 

- 

P
age 75



 15 
Key areas for care and quality improvement: comparative 
performance of assessments and improvement opportunities 

Staff and patient experience across NHS 
providers 

RD&E NDHT TSDHT PHT DPT England 

Friends and Family Test (inpatient)   99.65% 99.95% 96.55% 99.18% - 95% 

Friends and Family Test (A&E) 95.65% 81.13% 97.1% 99.42% - 87% 

Friends and Family Test (Mental Health) - - - - 98.29% 88% 

Harm free care  94% 95% 90% 96% 100% 94% 

Staff survey score out of 4 
Overall engagement increased in all areas 

3.85  3.93 3.87 3.68 3.75 
3.79 (acute) 
3.75 (MH) 

OFSTED children’s services 
 

CCG assurance framework 

NEW Devon  
CCG 

Devon 
County 
Council 

Plymouth 
City Council 

Torbay 
Council 

 

CCG & Local Authority 
Assessments 

South 
Devon & 

Torbay CCG 

Source: NEW Patient Safety and Quality Scorecard in Development – Data from August 2016, England Data from August 2016 
Ofsted Children’s Services – Devon: Publication 03/15. Plymouth: Publication 01/2015; Torbay: Publication 01/2016  
CCG Assurance Framework: 2015/2016 Data  
Staff Survey: Data from 2015 
Harm Free Care: August 2016 (RD&E), September 2016 (NDHT, TSDHT,DPT, England) 

Triple Aim 

Inadequate 

Requires 
improvement 

Not assessed 

P
age 76



 16 

We will be responding to our analysis of what people need by re-allocating resources to better meet the greatest needs of the 
population e.g. through shifting our resources out of hospital, reducing the amount spent on unnecessary bed-based care, 
improving efficiency and reinvesting in more innovative, integrated care models including investing in community assets that 
do more to prevent ill health, keep people out of hospital, treat them effectively when needed and enable them to recover 
rapidly and to stay in their own homes for as long as possible. 

 

Drivers of the financial deficit 

Whilst improving health, we also have to close a significant potential funding gap in health and social care funding over the 
next five years. If we do nothing this means the Devon STP footprint will have be £557m in debt by 2020/21 across the health 
and social care system. This includes the local authority adult and children’s social care gap across the whole footprint  

Independent sector 
care including CHC 

Elective care and 
intervention rates 

Community services Length of Stay Productivity 

Devon spends 
significantly more 
on Continuing 
Healthcare (CHC) 
than other areas of 
similar 
size/population. 
Unit cost of 
independent care 
sector 
 

We treat more 
people than other 
areas with similar 
populations 

High levels of NHS & 
social care 
community services 
spending compared 
to peers 

Excess length of stay in 
acute hospitals and 
non-elective 
admissions where 
patients would benefit 
if we had access to 
ambulatory or 
alternative community 
based models of care 

Trust level 
productivity analysis 
confirms 
opportunities across 
staffing, 
procurement and 
agency spend. 
 

Deficit Drivers 

Triple Aim 

P
age 77



 17 

NOTE: When the RAB effect is included, the total challenge amounts to £705m. 

£3,500

£3,750

£4,000

£4,250

£4,500

£4,750

£5,000

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Combined Resource Combined Challenge

By 2021, without 
transformational change 
there will be a system deficit 
of £557m 
 

The financial challenges we have to address 

A system-wide challenge of £557m is forecast by the year 2020/21  
in £m 
 

Triple Aim 

P
age 78



 18 

A vital element of our return to clinical and financial sustainability is that our available 
resources are distributed optimally to meet population need by the end of our programme. 
 
Our approach to the transformation of care, which is underpinned  by population need, will 
both determine and drive resource distribution going forward. 
 
Analysis of CCG spend indicates sizable inequities in resource distribution across the wider 
Devon system. It highlights lower levels of spend in our more deprived areas, particularly in 
parts of Plymouth, and on mental health care. 
  
A further more comprehensive analysis will be undertaken which will include sources of 
funding – primary care, specialised commissioning and provider deficit support - not 
included in the initial analysis to confirm the scale of the inequities to be addressed. 
  
The output will be incorporated into the financial strategy to ensure our pathway to 
financial sustainability includes achievement of equitable population and care group 
resourcing. 
 

Addressing funding inequalities  Triple Aim 

P
age 79



 19 

Delivery of the 2016/17 savings opportunities and 
“business as usual” efficiencies in providers and 
commissioners is achieving savings in the region of 
£85m in 2016/17. These schemes form the building 
blocks for future years.  

1 

An assessment of investment in new and enhanced 
services and the expected impact on activity has been 
carried out. This will deliver the excellent care 
initiatives by reducing activity and shifting the setting 
of care closer to home. 

2 

Additional productivity opportunities including 
rationalisation of estate and back-office will contribute 
to provider productivity. 

3 

Examining the options that will ensure the clinical 
sustainability of acute services will help avoid 
forecasted cost pressures. Work on health promotion  
will help avoid the growth in demand for care services. 

4 

Delivering benefits of integrated local care, to ensure 
that reliance on expensive bed based care is 
minimised, and people retain their independence. 

5 

A detailed analysis of the distribution of resources, and 
a plan to address the current geographical and service 
inequities, particularly for mental health 

6 

Closing this financial gap will rely on six things to reduce demand and 
cost of delivering care, improve productivity and address inequalities 

Triple Aim 

P
age 80



20 

Priorities 

Programme Plan 

Project Mandate 

Delivery 

Performance 
Management 

Case for Change 

Strategic financial 
framework 

Projects lifecycle 
Resources 
Governance  

Our STP programme management approach will ensure that there is 
clear line of sight from case for change through to delivery 

Structure & 
governance 

P
age 81



21 

Through the Success Regime, NEW Devon’s partners have developed a strong ethos of system-wide working with 
commissioners, providers and local authorities coming together to agree a single system plan and financial control 
total for our 2016/17 plan. With the STP footprint including South Devon and Torbay, our system-wide co-design 
work to develop and implement our transformational change proposals from 2017/18 onwards will include partners 
across wider Devon. 

South Devon & Torbay have a strong track record of working collaboratively across the commissioner, providers and 
local authority boundaries. Torbay & South Devon Healthcare Foundation Trust is the first fully integrated care 
organisation in England and their local governance arrangements around this are well established. 

There is already significant health and local authority integration in both commissioning and provision across 
Devon. Adult social care is fully integrated with health provision in Torbay; Health and social care commissioning is 
fully integrated in Plymouth, along with a single integrated health & social care provider. In Devon County there are 
numerous examples of integrated provision and ambitious plans are in development to achieve extended scope and 
coverage of this as part of this Plan. There is increasing collaboration across the wider local authority agenda 
including housing, economic development and public health. NHS organisations are supporting and contributing to 
local authority proposals for a new combined authority – “The heart of the south west”. 

These foundations provide a sound platform upon which to bring together both CCGs and three local authority 
areas to create strong and cohesive leadership of the STP agenda. 

The new STP-wide governance infrastructure (shown in appendix 1) will allow us to work together to extend our 
collaborative working and decision making across the whole STP footprint, under the leadership of a lead chief 
executive (Angela Pedder) and an Independent chair (Dame Ruth Carnall) 

Governance arrangements and system collaboration achievements 
Structure & 
governance 

P
age 82



22 

Our priorities 

 

1. Prevention & early intervention 

2. Integrated care model 

3. Primary care 

4. Mental health 

5. Acute Hospital and specialised services 

6. Productivity 

7. Children, young people and families 

Developing plans to deliver our priorities 

P
age 83



 23 Priority 1: Prevention & early intervention 

Top five causes of death in under 75s 

1. Coronary heart disease (CHD) 
2. Trachea, bronchus and lung cancers 
3. Accidents 
4. Bronchitis, emphysema and other chronic obstructive pulmonary 

disease (COPD) 
5. Cerebrovascular disease (stroke) 

 

Priorities 

Smoking cessation 

Alcohol misuse 

Healthy eating 

Moving more 

Social connectedness and combatting loneliness 

Mental health gap in access and outcomes 

Addressing wider determinants of health - social, economic, environmental and cultural factors 

See appendix for further information 

Prevention delivered through the new care model, will bring a renewed focus on prevention. To improve health and 
wellbeing and address health inequalities a long-term approach will be needed but we have identified some early 
priorities: 

 Accident prevention - falls and fractures  

P
age 84



 24 

Our approach to prevention of ill health and encouraging independence and wellbeing is based on our identification 
of areas of significant local need and the potential to make both a health and financial impact across a large area. 
These priorities are better delivered together rather than in individual organisations as we will realise more cost and 
outcome benefits. 

1 

2 

Based on  key health and wellbeing challenge themes identified in our JSNAs as follows:  
• Settings – place based health, care homes, workplace, housing 
• Life-course – starting well, living well, ageing well 
• Behaviours – smoking, eating, alcohol and physical activity and inactivity, DSVA 
• Diseases and medical conditions – diabetes, hypertension, falls and fractures, sexual health 
• Approach – making every contact count, complex individuals, universal proportionalism 
Potential overlaps with wider work – place-based health, mental health, children and young people, planned care 
optimisation 

 
The early priorities have been developed and further modelling and potential investment and cost savings are being 
scoped using the population segmentation undertaken. Early suggested priorities include: 
1. Making every contact count and brief intervention training at scale 
2. Test the new approach with an initial focus on the alcohol pathway from brief advice to acute alcohol liaison 
3. Scale up lifestyle interventions through the new Devon Lifestyle service, Thrive Plymouth and ICO mode in T&SD 
4. Focus on long-term conditions prevention and early intervention with a focus on co-morbidities in particular 

mental health and diabetes and hypertension 
5. Develop further prevention and early intervention for pre-frail and frail to include isolation and falls prevention 

and the care home setting 
6. Connect with the mental health and children and young people priorities to ensure a focus on emotional health 

& Wellbeing of children and young people 
 

3 

Priority 1: Developing the prevention priorities Priorities 

P
age 85



 25 

In order to empower people, their carers and communities to take a more active role in their health and 
wellbeing we plan to: 

Develop Integrated Personal Commissioning (IPC) to enable greater involvement in planning and choosing their care 
as a mainstream model of community based care for around 5% of the Devon population, including people with 
multiple long-term conditions, people with severe and enduring mental health problems and children and adults 
with complex learning disabilities and autism.  

1 

Expand personal health budgets and integrated personal budgets in line with the ambitions of the Five Year Forward 
View - including exploring the concept for maternity and end-of life. Our ambition in Devon is to use the Integrated 
Personal Commissioning programme to go further and faster than the national target and we aim to achieve 2,000 
individual budgets by 2018. We are already well ahead of other systems in implementing IPC. 

2 

Achieve a step change in patient activation and self-care. The South Devon and Torbay urgent care vanguard has a 
framework in place which includes consideration of social segmentation, a strengths-based approach to behaviour 
change and the development and integration of directory of services. We also need to build on the Plymouth 
approach to integration, the Integrated Care in Exeter (ICE) project and One Ilfracombe. 

3 

Continue to work with Peninsula Urgent and Emergency Care network to develop a Peninsula-wide plan, leveraging 
collaborative opportunities. In parallel, we will develop detailed service models that meet local population needs. 
Our local delivery timeline is aligned with the emerging plan being developed for the Peninsula Urgent & Emergency 
Care Network.  

4 

Continue to develop our Better Care Funds to support our focus on prevention. They are already operating in a way 
that brings providers and commissioners together to determine how a single pooled fund can best be deployed to 
support improved flow of patients and how to keep people well and supported at home, or to return their own 
home as quickly as possible following a period of ill health, including support to their carers.  

5 

Priority 2: Promoting health through integration Priorities 

P
age 86



 26 
Priority 2: Integrated care model – promoting independence through 
a focus on joined up care provided locally 

We will strengthen community health & care services so that they can both help people to avoid the need to access NHS and other provided 
care and respond swiftly when people become unwell. This means investing in more community-based services and associated technology so 
that they mirror the availability and reliability of hospital-based care. This includes enhancing our support to carers and delivering high 
quality end of life care, as well as building wider community support that can keeps people well. 

The best bed is my own bed 

We also want to make sure that people do not travel further than they need to for care / treatment. Keeping people well and independent 
avoids the need to travel for care. The more community and primary care services we can provide in or close to people’s homes the better.  

Services closer to home 

Where people need to be admitted to hospital, we will make sure that they receive the best quality and experience of care, that we have 
caring and skilled staff to look after them and that we meet national quality/safety standards. New discharge to assess services will ensure 
people return to their normal place of residence quickly and safely and that care is coordinated around the person and their family. 

High quality hospital care 

Moving discussion from ‘what‘s the matter with a person?’ to ‘what matters most to a person?’ means that we will adopt a person-centred 
and asset-based approach to care, promoting networks of support, skills and attributes of individuals that increase people’s self -confidence 
to manage their health and care for themselves. This approach will avoid unnecessary reliance on statutory services that can take away a 
person’s independence and create more resilient communities. Patients will own their own digital, shared care plan. 

What matters to me  

Adopting a person-centred and community-centred approach to health and wellbeing helps to build community capacity and resilience which 
in turn helps provide support to reduce social isolation and loneliness and can contribute to reducing health inequalities for individuals and 
communities. Our voluntary and community partners are at the heart of our new care model. It is through the interaction of statutory 
services with local voluntary and community groups that we can improve people’s health and wellbeing, reduce demand on health and care 
services and lead to wider social outcome improvements. 

Community-centred approach 

Wellbeing is at the centre of our care model because it reflects the importance and necessity of focussing on prevention and early 
intervention. ‘Making every contact count’ encourages conversations based on behaviour change methodologies, ranging from brief advice 
and intervention, to more advanced behaviour change techniques. The aim is to empower healthier lifestyle choices and exploring the wider 
social determinants that influence all of our health. Patient activation measures can help us to understand where people are in terms of their 
level of knowledge and confidence to manage their own health. Activation measures have been linked to improved clinical outcomes and 
reduced costs of care. 

Making every contact count 

Priorities 

P
age 87



 27 

The development and implementation of new models of care is fundamental in delivering the vision based on the drivers for change we 
have outlined earlier (on page 5). This transformation work is high profile and will realise a broad range of STP deliverables; increased focus 
on prevention, financial sustainability and quality of care. 
 
Whilst the vision is consistent across the STP footprint, models of care will be tailored to meet the needs of localities. Models will maximise 
the use of non bed-based care and support people and carers as individuals, outcomes tailored to specific need. Development is at differing 
stages currently: In South Devon a full service model developed underpinned by a full engagement process and planned consultation. In the 
North there has been a focus on care closer to home and enhancing home-facing care services, the locality is engaging with a range of 
stakeholders to define the type and level of service required, location, and analysis on both financial and patient benefits. The diagram 
below supports us to analyse current configurations of service and work with stakeholders around which services and patient outcome 
should be achieved across the various phases: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Phase 1 

Phase 2 

Phase 3 

Phase 4 

Priority 2: New models of care 

Staying healthy 

Self Care 

Locality based 

Community 

Services 

Safe and 

sustainable 

Services 

Priorities 

P
age 88



 28 

Our modelling shows that the out of 
hospital model offers more care to 
people for the same cost. 
 
Our proposals currently out to public 
consultation will help us enhance and 
increase care capacity closer to where 
people live. 

Priority 2: The model allows investment to improve care capacity and 
delivery through reduced reliance on bed based care 

Priorities 

P
age 89



 29 

First phase of implementation of the integrated care model is underway across the STP footprint. We are pursuing changes to service 
delivery in all areas that focus on promoting independence, keeping people safe and well at home / in their own communities and 
reducing reliance on bed-based care. We have plans to reduce both acute and community hospital bed numbers which will enable 
additional investment in community & primary care and other local services to help deliver more  care, more effectively to more people, 
closer to where they live and help them to maintain the highest level of independence. 

Priority 2: New model of care – a local approach 

 
 

Our new model of care will have a local (place / community based) approach. In developing this we have considered the work of the King’s 
Fund “Place-based systems of care” (Ham; Alderwick 2015) recognising that systems of care exist on different place-based footprints. The 
wider Devon STP area has a geographical and economic coherence based on the old shire county of Devon. Within this we have recognised 
material variation in care and quality, health and wellbeing outcomes; productivity, and finance and delivery performance. It is at this STP 
population level that we want to develop strategic plans including a financial strategy to achieve financial balance. However, these variations 
and inequalities can only change through action and delivery at the level at which they occur.  

Public and user engagement in our vision is helping shape common design principles that will enable us to prioritise and tackle specific 
inequalities. Currently there are 4 localities – North, East, West and South (see below). As we develop our work and define the level of 
place we require to best deliver our strategy our current approach may change. 

Priorities 

Western Devon 
(including Plymouth) 

South Devon & 
Torbay (1ST Integrated 
care organisation in 

England) 

Royal Devon & Exeter 
Foundation Trust 
  
Vertical integration 
 
ICE project 
 

Health and social care 
integrated provision.   
 
Implementing new 
care model through  
the integrated care 
organisation 
 
 
 
 
 

Whole system 
commissioning fund. 
 
Integrated health & 
social care provider 
 

Eastern  
Devon 

Northern Devon 

Northern Devon 
Healthcare Trust 
 

Vertical integration 
 

One Ilfracombe, One 
North Devon  
 

Devon Cares – 
domiciliary care 
service  

P
age 90



 30 Priority 2: Integrated care - wider planning 

Integrated local planning will also take account of natural cross boundary flows. Most significant is the East Cornwall 
population served by Plymouth Hospitals NHS Trust. We are working with Kernow CCG to ensure our plans are 
appropriately aligned. 

There is already an established track record of achievement which we will help to accelerate change 

• The first Integrated Care Organisation (ICO) in England (acute hospital, community health and adult social care) is 

in South Devon & Torbay 

• Fully integrated health & social care commissioning in Plymouth 

• Integrated community health and social care community provider in Plymouth 

• A high degree of vertical integration between acute and community health and social care services already 

delivering benefits in Northern Devon, including an emerging place-based approach in One Ilfracombe and other 

towns 

• Foundations established for similar care integration between acute and community health and social care in 

Eastern Devon 

• Northern Devon Healthcare Trust is the first NHS Trust to provide domiciliary care. Operating across Northern 

and Mid Devon under the name of ‘Devon Cares’ and aims to bridge gap between health and social care 

provision into people’s homes 

• Significant progress on integrated health & social care provision across Devon County 

• A strong track record of population engagement on community services 

Priorities 

P
age 91



 31 

GPs will continue to be very much at the centre of patients’ care, coordinating with other clinicians and healthcare 
providers, as well as providing care directly to patients. Partnership with patients, as well as fellow clinicians, to optimise 
health and wellbeing will be extended, as will pro-active identification and subsequent management of illness, and in 
particular long-term conditions. 

We want to ensure we have high quality and sustainable primary care services which are integrated with social, voluntary, 
mental health, community and acute care across Devon. Primary care provision will be developed form a significant 
component of the integrated care model. 

We recognise the need for practices to collaborate more formally than has been typical in the past, and we will provide 
support to make this happen, including investing in IM&T systems, workforce sustainability and premises where return on 
investment can satisfactorily be demonstrated. We will continue to commission integrated pathways of care that shift the 
focus of care from a bed-based model to one that is primary and community care focussed, and realign funding to enable 
this to happen. 

We are developing a high level integrated primary care strategy for the STP that is capable of addressing the key 
challenges faced by primary care and incorporating the expectations of the GP Forward View. This will need to be 
translated at a local community level to agree changes that will respond to the varying needs of local communities and 
their different starting points. Whilst there is a significant focus on general practice we will also develop plans to better 
integrate other primary care providers especially pharmacy and optometry.  

Engagement is key and we are working closely with both our CCG commissioning GPs and primary care provider 
representatives to co-design a sustainable future for the primary care sector that can make a vibrant, high quality and 
material contribution to our vision for fully integrated care. 

 

Priority 3: Sustainable integrated primary care – the vision Priorities 

Primary care will be an integral part of our new care model. We will prioritise broader integration of primary care 
into the wider care system in order to address some of their immediate challenges, around workforce 
sustainability, capacity and scale, 7 day working, IM&T and estate. 

P
age 92



 32 

The South Devon & Torbay Primary Care Strategy has been informed and supported by a Primary Care Stakeholder 
Survey. This sets out plans to proactively meet the challenges of future development including: 

 

• Access and 7-day a week delivery  
• Stakeholders and professional reputation 
• Collaboration 
• IM&T infrastructure 
• Workforce sustainability 
• Voluntary and third sector 
• Education and leadership development 

 

• Self -care 
• Premises 
• Patient and public participation 
• Unplanned care 
• Prescribing and medicines optimisation 
• Funding flows 
• Quality 

 

Priority 3: Primary care – developing and delivering the strategy 

The Northern, Eastern and Western Devon Primary Care strategy is in development. The priorities are first to support 
practices to work at scale, to work together and plan change together, working as part of a transformed multi-
disciplinary fully integrated workforce. The CCG is working to overcome contractual and infrastructure barriers to 
better enable this. 
In NEW Devon we need to build on the plethora of good practice but small in scale changes already in place to create 
a consistent and coherent set of change plans across the area. 
 
We are working across the STP footprint to ensure that we make best use of the additional funding available to 
support the GP Forward View. We are aligning supported initiatives to specific local primary care challenges and our 
evolving integrated care model. We will support a programme of (consistent) shorter term and small scale service 
change and improvement at practice level to build capability and engagement and to help provide some immediate 
solutions to the most pressing issues. 
We will work towards delegated commissioning to ensure change plans can fully align with the STP.  

Priorities 

P
age 93



 33 

The national Five Year Forward View for Mental Health has set out the case for transforming mental health care 
across England by putting mental and physical health on an equal footing.  There are benefits to this approach for  
people using mental health services and for the health and care system.  
 

National priorities for all STPs are:  

• High quality 7-day services for people in crisis  

• Integrated approach to the delivery of physical and mental health care 

• Promoting good mental health and preventing poor mental health 

• Ensuring arrangements are in place for good mental health care across the NHS - wherever people need it 

Our Case for Change highlights the fact that mental illness is relatively common in Devon and that people with 
serious mental illness experience poorer health outcomes than the general population. It is also identifies the need 
to prioritise high quality and accessible services for people with a mental illness - especially those who also have 
poor physical health - as well as prioritising the mental health needs of people with a physical health need. In 
addition more needs to be done to prevent mental illness and promote mental wellbeing. However, much less 
money is spent on mental health (when out-of-area placements are excluded) in Devon than in other similar areas of 
the country, and services are not as comprehensive as they need to be to ensure the best outcomes for people.  
 
We believe that mental health should have equal priority with physical health and that everyone who needs mental 
health care should get the right support, at the right time. We have included mental health throughout our STP - in 
terms of prevention, integrated care and specialist services – so that mental health is an integral part of our system. 
We will design and deliver clear pathways of care that meet people’s mental and physical health needs. We have 
developed a set of local priorities to transform mental health care in Devon and these, along with the national 
requirements, will be addressed through our transformation programme. 
 
 
 
 

Priority 4: Transforming mental health & Learning disabilities Priorities 

P
age 94



 34 

Clear, evidence-based pathways of care will be established 
for all main mental health conditions – from prevention and 
primary care through to secondary care, specialist care and 
supported recovery.  
 
The interface between primary and secondary care will be 
transformed so that  people can have the most appropriate 
care in the right setting. 
 
Mental health will be an integral and equal part of the new 
model of care in order to ensure improvements in the 
wellbeing, support and experience of people with dementia 
and their carers in wider Devon. 
 
We will strengthen plans for suicide prevention and publish 
our plans in accordance with national requirements. 

1. Ensuring safe and sustainable services and addressing 
gaps in service provision  

We will create a more effective and robust care pathway for 
people experiencing a mental health crisis.  We will ensure 
sufficient Crisis Resolution and Home Treatment Team capacity 
and effective step-up and step-down options to ensure that we 
can provide alternatives to hospital admission and ensure 
discharge from  hospital is timely.  
 
We will develop greater community resilience to support people 
with mental health needs, for example through increasing the 
availability of peer support programmes. 
 
We will set out a plan of service development and improvement 
to achieve these aims.  This will be agreed and regularly reviewed 
against a set of performance indicators. 
 
 
 

2. Making acute and crisis care more resilient; 24 hours a day, 
seven days a week  

We will develop a mental health outcomes strategy that prioritises prevention, early intervention and recovery across wider Devon that 
will create a framework for achieving :  
• A seamless and integrated experience for everyone, regardless of their age 
• Access to mental health services that are timely, proactive and effective 
• Empowerment and self-help as essential principles of a remodelled mental health system 
• Commissioning additional Individual Placement Support roles for those with severe and enduring mental illness 
• Delivering integrated physical and mental health services  
 

3. A life course approach to care  

Priority 4: Transforming mental health – seven priorities Priorities 

P
age 95



 35 

Enhance expertise, services, and facilities in Devon that meet people’s 
needs locally and reduce placements out-of-area:  
• Reducing the number of people receiving specialist mental health 

care out-of-area; improving  provision for intensive rehabilitation 
and specialist dementia  care; improving s117 aftercare 
commissioning and enhancing community pathways to maximise  
recovery or provide onward support following hospital admission 

• Extending clinically-led individual placement commissioning  and 
considering models of provision needed to return people to Devon 

• Piloting a commissioning  model for specialised Secure Care and 
identifying opportunities to shift resources from hospital care to 
community pathways, aligned with Transforming Care Partnerships  

• Commissioning specialist community eating disorder services and 
ensuring that commissioners and providers join the national quality 
improvement and accreditation network for community eating 
disorder services (QNCC ED)  

 

5. Treating people with complex care needs in Devon   4. Achieving equity of access and national standards  

We will achieve equitable access to mental health services that meets 
national standards for people across wider Devon, including: 
 
• Treatment for Children and Young People 
• Access to perinatal mental health support 
• Early Intervention in Psychosis 
• Increased access to Psychological Therapies 
• Diagnosis of dementia and effective support through regular  

care plan reviews 
• Annual physical health checks 
• Access to Individual and Placement Support to find employment 
• Core 24hr psychiatric liaison services where needed  
• Meeting urgent care response standards 
• Further reduction in out-of-area placements and care 

Enabling health and care staff in the wider workforce to meet people’s 
mental health needs with the appropriate support of mental health 
professionals . 
 
Creating a balanced and flexible workforce, of the right size and with 
the right skills, that is well led and appropriately rewarded. 
 
Embedding a health and social care system in which mental health and 
learning disability are everyone’s business. 
 

6. Recruiting and retaining staff  

Working with our schools and Local Authorities to develop systems 
that support emotional wellbeing, resilience and positive mental 
health whilst transforming the delivery of mental health services for 
children and young people through our CAMHS transformation plans.  

7. Increasing access to mental health support and services for 
children and young people 

Priority 4: Transforming mental health – seven priorities Priorities 

P
age 96



36 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 Transforming care for people who have a learning disability and/or autism who have behaviours that 
 challenge. This aims to bring people placed in hospital back into the community, prevent admissions to 
 hospital, and to make sure that people have every opportunity to live a good life. 

1 

3 

In order to address this we have developed nursing liaison roles across primary, acute and neurological 
services. However we need to ensure that as a community of health and social care providers we have a legal 
and moral duty to consider the needs of this population in all our plans and pathways and make the 
reasonable adjustments required to help people access the services they need. 
 

In order to address this we have developed a new Transforming Care plan that spans the whole STP area and 
also includes children and young people. In order to make sustainable change happen action needs to be 
undertaken in a number of areas. 
 

We want people in Devon with a learning disability to live well and we have been developing plans to achieve this:  
 

Drivers behind our work in the field of learning disability include: 

Tackling health inequalities: The Confidential Inquiry into the Premature Deaths of People who have 
Learning Disabilities (CIPOLD) in 2013 showed that on average “women with a learning disability were dying 
20 years before women in the general population and men, on average, 13 years earlier.” 

 

2 

This can be achieved through more robust outcomes based commissioning that utilises reviews to help set 
new goals to help people to progress. 
 

There is a need across all commissioned services to maximise the independence of people who have a 
learning disability. Furthermore we need to support opportunities for people to develop real friendships that 
will reduce the number of people experiencing loneliness.  

Priority 4: Living well with learning disabilities  Priorities 

P
age 97



37 

This plan is for people of all ages living in Devon, Torbay and Plymouth 
who have a learning disability and / or autism, who display behaviour 
that challenges, including behaviour from a mental health condition 

Our vision is to create a place where children and adults with a learning 
disability live in the community of their choice, with the people they 
want, and with the right support, and are happy, healthy and safe  

All people placed out 
of the area are 
returned to their own 
community 

No-one remains in 
hospital for longer 
than they need to be  

All people on our risk 
register have been 
offered a personal 
budget and have an 
individually designed 
service  

We have a range of 
providers offering 
choice to people who 
have their own 
budgets 

There is a lifelong 
pathway for people 

 
 
• Too many people in inpatient 

care, out of area 
• People fit into services rather 

than services being built around 
them 

• Over-referral to long term 
residential care  

 

• Choice of local housing, care 
and support 

• Individually designed services 
funded through personal 
budgets 

• Short term inpatient care 

Things to do now 
 
• Engage service users 

on our vision. 
• Check our data and 

finance information. 
• Implement our 

project plan and 
engage key 
stakeholders in our 
working groups. 

• Develop our wider 
communication plan 

• Get all the people and 
organisations 
involved working 
together . 

Things to do in the 
longer term  
 
A single pathway. 
Increase the choice of 
local housing, care and 
support. 
Develop co-designed 
care and support plans 
with robust outcomes. 
Personal budgets and 
direct payments. 
Support for people, 
parents and carers. 
Effective short breaks 
and crisis arrangements 
for people with complex 
needs. 

People and their 
carers have a better 
quality of life and are 
helped to be as 
independent as 
possible 

 

 

 

  
We are succeeding when: 

 

 

 

 

 

The current model 

 

 

 

The new model 

 

Benefits of our new 
model of care 
 
People are cared for and 
supported in the best 
place for them. 
Care and support is 
arranged around people 
not where they live. 
People get just the right 
help to be as 
independent as possible, 
without being too 
dependent on services. 
People are able to lead 
active lives in the 
community. 
 

Priority 4: Devon-wide transforming care partnership plan Priorities 

P
age 98



 38 

In order to secure and then sustain the priorities for improvements in mental health care in Devon we will through 
our STP: 

• Review our spending on mental health services as a proportion of the total system 

• Review how we currently use our resources to ensure they are directed toward evidence based and effective 

interventions, providing supporting at an early stage and ensuring safe and sustainable services. 

• Realise the benefits of increasing mental health interventions that reduce activity in other parts of the system, 

such as reduced attendances, admissions or length of stay in hospitals,  and reinvest these savings to continue to 

fund these enhanced mental health services in future.  

We understand that transforming mental health care in Devon and addressing our priorities will require additional 
resources. National guidance requires an increase in baseline spending on mental health by at least the overall 
growth in allocations in order to deliver the Mental Health Investment Standard.  
 
In order to make a start toward increasing resources and improving access to services, mental health services in 
Devon have been proactive in securing additional revenue and capital funding through national funding 
opportunities such as: increasing access to psychological therapies, and improving health based places of safety for 
people experiencing mental health crisis. 

Priority 4: Transforming mental health resources Priorities 

P
age 99



 39 

• The NEW Devon case for change identified concerns about quality and/or sustainability of some acute hospital and specialist services. 
It prioritised stroke, maternity, paediatrics and neonatology and emergency and urgent care for urgent review.  A similar analysis 
undertaken in Torbay and South Devon confirmed similar priorities for review.   

• Medical leaders in Wider Devon also identified a number of clinically and financially vulnerable services where clinical sustainability 
was causing some concern. The causes of this vulnerability can include national staff shortages or low patient numbers, which make it 
difficult for clinical staff to keep their skills up to date and where action may be necessary to maintain reliable services. 

• An overarching programme for the review of acute and specialist services has been established. The programme will be led by the STP 
Clinical Cabinet chair and a nominated Lead Chief Executive. The objectives of the review will be to optimise the quality and 
timeliness of acute hospital and specialist care by making services more resilient with better outcomes and improved affordability.  

• The unique geography of Devon will not limit access to time critical services and  that  proposed changes are affordable within the 
allocated system funding 

Priority 5: Acute hospital and specialist services 

The services  prioritised for review in the first phase 
of this programme are: 
 
• Stroke services (including hyper-acute and stroke 

rehabilitation). 
• Maternity (including consultant-led and midwife-

led care), paediatrics and neontaology, to be 
reviewed together given their inter-dependency. 

• Urgent and emergency services, focusing 
particularly on the acute hospital provision of 
accident and emergency and co-dependent 
services.  
 
 

 
The  ‘vulnerable’ services for review include: 
 
• Breast services (surgery and radiology)  
• Ear, Nose and Throat 
• Interventional radiology  
• Histopathology  
• Neurology  
• Interventional cardiology  
• Vascular surgery   

 
Scope and content of subsequent phases is 
currently being developed 

Priorities 

P
age 100



 40 

• Leaders within the wider Devon STP recognise that unifying a commissioning approach to services with 
Specialised Commissioning is critical to a sustainable Plan over the next five years. Both CCGs are exploring how 
specialised services can be commissioned differently to integrate pathways, develop local service alternatives 
and  to crystallise opportunities for consolidation as part of reconfiguration plans 

• Specialised Services within the South West Peninsula are delivered in a number of Trusts. The transformation 
programme for specialised services will be integrated with the Devon STP acute and specialist services review 
work programme 

 
• Plymouth Hospitals NHS Trust will be the lead centre for trauma, cardiac surgery, neurosurgery and level 3 

neonatology in the STP footprint 
 

• For specialised mental health the aim is to: 
• eliminate  unnecessary admissions out of the South West of England 
• establish a South West tertiary  mental health care models pilot  with budget circa £70m (this will be 

undertaken as part of the mental health work programme) 

• The STP partners will seek permission to develop plans that would reinvest specialised commissioning 
efficiencies where our plans control demand and produce service alternatives that reduce demand for 
specialised interventions  
 

• We will also work in conjunction with national and regional service networking arrangements to develop, 
share and implement best practice and align our plans as appropriate across neighbouring STP areas – for 
example, Cancer Alliance, strategic clinical networks; urgent & emergency care network. 

 

Priority 5: Acute hospital & specialist services – specialised 
commissioning  

Specialised Commissioning  - services currently commissioned by NHS England 

Reinvestment and collaboration  

Priorities 

P
age 101



 41 
Priority 6: Productivity  – cost effectiveness of care per head of 
population  

Objective 

Expected impact 

• Significant reductions in pay and non-pay costs by 2020/21 across four providers in Devon (RD&E, Plymouth, NDHT, 
T&SD) 

• Achieve operational productivity as good as top quartile performers in provider peer groups 

Key workstreams 

Team 

 

Milestones 

• High level productivity opportunity agreed by 
Finance Working Group (FWG) 

• Providers to reconcile with Carter benchmarking 
analysis and to develop plans to target 
opportunities 

• Finance Working Group  
• consists of Directors of Finance from all 

providers in STP 
• chaired by Andy Robinson, STP Director 

of Finance 

Each provider has had their pay and non-pay costs and spend benchmarked against similar sized and types of NHS 
organisations. This has enabled us to identify with a view to implementing productivity opportunities across 
providers in Devon. 

• Improving pay productivity within 
• Medical staff 
• Nursing staff 
• Scientific, Therapeutic & Technical (ST&T) 

staff 
• Other non-clinical staff 

• Improving non – pay productivity within 
• Clinical supplies and drugs 
• Estates 
• Agency 

Priorities 

P
age 102



 42 

We know that some CYP may need more targeted and specialist support. Therefore we 
need to:  

It is our aim to ensure we are ‘doing the right thing at the right time’ to support children, young people and families (CYP) across wider Devon. 
Support is area-based, seamless and has an integrated pathway approach that builds resilience and early support to CYP and their families. To do 
this we need to:  

Priority 7: Children, young people and families 

• Help families and practitioners understand and access Early Help in their community. 
• Ensure that children and young people are able to access whole person support in the right place throughout their journey. This means 

ensuring that staff have the best skills to help them to thrive and to provide support through key transition points. 
• Ensure that children and young people stay healthy, with intervention starting earlier, both in terms of access to the right people who have 

the skills and of expertise to their support needs.   
• Commissioners and providers will co-produce a model of care across universal and specialist services that spans health, social care and 

education; and ensures that adult and children’s services work together to prepare young people for adulthood. 
• Ensure that mechanisms are in place to enable effective communication, sharing data and enabling timely access to the right pathway. 
• Strengthen access to senior paediatric expertise, linked to GP practices, for urgent and non-urgent needs.  
• Provide a rapid access clinic for non-emergency cases, led by paediatricians.  
• Triage quickly and effectively to ensure that children and young people can access the right care appropriate to their needs and in doing so 

avoid unnecessary attendances and admissions whilst ensuring that their parents/carers also receive appropriate support. 
 

• Ensure that our consistent arrangements also comply with statutory responsibilities 
for children with Special educational needs (SEND) their parents/carers and also 
young carers. 

• Provide a local offer available for children under the SEND reforms, that enables 
them to achieve the outcomes and goals identified through their ECHP. We must 
support children and young people, including those with complex needs and the 
most vulnerable, with multi-agency co-ordinated care, as close to home as possible. 

• Support children and young people with emotional well-being and mental health 
services in supportive communities that can build resilience and that provide access 
to early help that delivers prevention and early intervention. Transformation of 
CAMHS will ensure timely crisis responses; specific pathways for eating disorders 
and self-harm; specific support to cared for children. 

• Evidence effective transition planning for children and young people and their 
families, offering more personalised care through the use of Personal Budgets. 

• Facilitate access to health assessments for children in care and services which are 
responsive to their needs; ensuring that we are safeguarding these vulnerable CYP. 

Priorities 

P
age 103



43 

1. Workforce 

2. Communications & engagement 

3. Estates 

4. IM&T 

Key enabling plans 

P
age 104



44 Enablers: Developing the workforce strategy  

 

The creation of employment opportunities are key drivers of health, wellbeing, economic growth, resilient communities and the delivery 
of quality care. Our new models of care will create the opportunity to think and work differently, creating a flexible workforce across 
health and social care which is capable of responding to the changing needs of people and to address many of the problems our staff and 
service users currently describe.  

 

Our workforce strategy also creates the opportunity to work with schools and colleges as well as our traditional links with universities to 
create new roles such as care apprentices creating more career opportunities and choice for young people locally . The STP area is one of 
11 national pilot sites for the new assistant nurse roles: 76 places will be available from January 2017. This innovative scheme is the only 
one in the country which had included the care home sector in the pilot. 

 

Implementation of the proposed changes in this Plan will have a major impact on the existing workforce. Our workforce will be 
supported to develop new skills and capability. Initial analysis indicates: 

 

• Re-provision of up to £60m per year to deliver the new care delivery arrangement interventions  could provide for between 1,000 
and 1,500 redesigned roles, representing retraining of  4 - 6% of the current workforce or recruiting new staff.  

• High-level estimates indicate a requirement for 900 staff to undertake different roles (these were based on traditional roles and 
ways of working, and require development) and many of these roles would be filled by staff relocating their work and expertise 
from existing services.  

• Significant training and support will be needed to as staff move to new roles, working in new ways in the new models of care. An 
extensive OD programme is being established to underpin these changes.  

• There will be challenges in recruitment in several areas such as domiciliary workers, social workers, health care assistants, primary 
care and senior medical staff in small specialties.  

• Primary care workforce development is a key area for attention given the Devon GP age profile and the key role primary care will 
play in our future  integrated model of care.  

Workforce leads in all the partner organisations in the STP are working together to address these issues and have developed this high 
level shared system-wide work plan. 

 

Enablers 

Opportunities 

P
age 105



 45 

• Produce an agreed strategic workforce Sustainability 

Transformation Plan (STP) which addresses the priorities 

identified that spans 10 years ahead but focus on the medium 

to five year plan. 

• Build and develop  key relationships with the agreed workforce 

representatives from across the whole system in an ongoing 

way to achieve effective engagement, understanding and  

collaboration in delivering the workforce objectives. 

• Systems leaders will ensure sign-up to an implementation plan, 

with clearly identified achievable steps informed and agreed by 

the models of care and clinical cabinet, tested and assured 

through agreed modelling. 

• Ensure workforce plans encompass the whole system for the 

long-term with the vision of the future integration landscape 

described and workforce mapped. 

• Agree and deliver system workforce benefits, for example, by 

exploring a joint values-based recruitment and retention 

strategy (one Devon, one workforce) that is inclusive across all  

statutory organisations with a focus on maximising use of the 

local labour force. 

 

• Explore opportunities for flexible education packages and career 
pathways which enable hybrid roles which can rotate within all 
partner organisations, working as required to support new care 
models (for example an Integrated Apprenticeship programme). 

• Develop system wide approaches to shared flexible staff 
learning interventions  prioritising initiatives  that deliver 
greatest benefit to staff and patients. 

• Set up and roll out pilot for assistant nurse role. 

• Develop the Community Education Provider Networks (CEPNs) 
to plan inter-professional learning (with support from Academic 
Health Science Network). 

• Develop systems that ensure Education and continuing 
professional development is accessible to the whole workforce. 

• Consider development of shared broad based integrated training 
delivery opportunities (e.g. key common statutory training) 
across partner organisations  that improve scale and efficiency 
of provision. 

•  Share best practice in care delivery practice that will support 
the existing workforce to  implement the new care model. 

• Maximise the impact of the new employment deal by working 
collaboratively across the STP on its implementation. 

Enablers: Developing the workforce strategy – early actions  Enablers 

P
age 106



 46 
Enablers: Stakeholder communication and engagement (SC&E) 
embedded within, and integral to the STP Programme 

• Development of a system-wide stakeholder communications and 
engagement plan to support delivery of the STP  

• Provision of expert SC&E advice to STP Programme Board informing 
strategic approach 

• Representation from three Healthwatch organisations to advise on 
public engagement at Programme Board  

• Development of strategic narrative and key messages aligned to, and 
reinforcing the Devon vision 

• Patient and public involvement assurance mechanism in place via NEW 
Devon Patient and Public Engagement Committee and SD&T 
Engagement Committee 

• Developing approaches to co-production / planning with citizens and 
communities 

• Embedding SC&E within each STP Working Group (e.g.: the Clinical 
Cabinet) 

• Establishing the governance structure to monitor delivery of SC&E Plan 
(including resourcing) 

• Development of core SC&E processes, channels and protocols – 
ensuring consistency, evaluation and use of feedback received 

• Stakeholder mapping and analysis 

• Patient and public engagement working with clinicians on STP groups 
• Weekly internal communication channels established  
• Media protocol in place  
• Daily calls between commissioner and provider comms leads 

Current focus 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Ta

ct
ic

al
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
al

 

 NEW Devon case for change launched in February to more 

than 10,000 staff and public 

 Widespread and extensive SD&T engagement in developing 

new model of care for community services 

 A growing awareness of the need for change by the public and 

staff 

 Key stakeholder events held in Plymouth, Torbay, Barnstaple 

and Exeter  

 Flow of feedback from events influencing the development of 

STP vision and approach. SD&T survey informing IM&T and 

wider primary care strategy implementation 

 Health and wellbeing scrutiny, Health and Wellbeing Boards 

and Member of Parliament briefings commenced 

 Public and patient representatives influencing design of new 

models of care 

 Clinicians and SC&E team co-designing/delivering 

communication and engagement activity 

 Increased alignment of SC&E across New Devon and South 

Devon CCG footprints 

 South Devon and Torbay CCG completed a nine month 

engagement programme which informed the “Into the 

Future” consultation proposals, published on 31 August 

 NEW Devon CCG launched a formal consultation (7 October 

2016) on proposals to achieve consistent, integrated 

community services.  

 Stakeholder engagement forum event held on 20 October 

 

 

 

 

 

Key achievements to date 

Enablers 

In a change programme of this size, scope and length it is critical that staff, patients, public and stakeholders understand the context, 
purpose and benefits of any change as well as feeling able to influence and be involved in the decision-making process. 

P
age 107



47 Enablers: Developing the Estates Transformation Strategy 

47 

Enablers 

P
age 108



48 Enabling through technology – the local digital roadmap 

Implementation of the proposed new care model requires new ways of working which will be enabled through technology and information sharing.  Data 
and digital technology has the power to support people to live healthier lives and be less reliant on care services, as well as ensuring the provision of 
health and care is both high quality and sustainable.  A local digital roadmap has been developed in collaboration with Kernow STP and sets out the 
shared vision, goals and plan required to deliver health and social care IT solutions across the South West Peninsula. To achieve this ambition locally there 
are four key areas of focus namely: 

– Build the foundations: health and care organisations need to reach digital maturity 

– Leverage the capability: connect all the digitally mature organisations 

– Leverage existing capabilities: identify what can be achieved ahead of 2020 

– Exploit the opportunities: enable  citizen access. 

STP 
priority 

Digital 
maturity 

System 
 wide 
 bed 

manage-
ment 

Integrated 
digital 
record 

Self 
care 

Information 
Sharing  

Framework 

GP 
record 
availab

-ility 

Child 
protection 
informatio
n system 

Secure 
email 
(care 

homes) 

Virtual 
consult
-ations 

Secure 
hotspots 

for 
health 

and care 
workers 

End of life 
wishes & 
shared 

care plan 
patient 
portal 

Prevention 

Care Model 

Primary care 

Mental 
Health 

Children & 
young 
people 

Acute 
hospital and 
specialist 
care 

Productivity 

Good progress is being 
made in terms of sharing 
the GP record in accordance 
with robust information 
sharing agreements.   
 

The next three areas in the 
local digital roadmap 
considered to deliver 
greatest alignment and 
impact on the seven 
priorities are: 
 

1. Delivery of the 
integrated digital health 
and care record 

2. Shared care plan 
3. Supporting self 

care/prevention, 
including the patient 
held portal. 

 

These will require significant 
additional resourcing over 
and above the current 
allocation. 

Enablers 

P
age 109



49 

Finance 

Programme architecture to design and develop and deliver  system 
wide plans 

Organisational  
Development  

 
Finance Working 

Group (FWG)  
 

Workforce  

Estates 

Communication  
Engagement  

Sustainability & Transformation Plan Board 
(X10 NHS and LA organisation senior leaders) 

Clinical Cabinet 

IM+T  

Prevention Integrated 
Local Care 

Programme 
Leadership Team 

STP PMO 

Prevention 
Steering Grp.  

Programme 
Group 

Productivity Acute and Specialist 
Transformation  

Programme 
Group 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lt

h
 

P
re

ve
n

ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

/ 
P

ri
m

ar
y 

C
ar

e
 

Mental Health 

Programme 
Group 

Programme 
Group 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

Collaborative Board 
(Chairs & CEs  
NHS and LA) 

Stakeholder Engagement 
Forum 

(Wide engagement group) 

Primary Care 

Programme 
Group 

Place based design and delivery arrangements. Co-production with citizens and communities – NHS and LA 

Appendix 1 

P
age 110



1. Regarding item number 3 (discharge from Torrington), re settling of raw sewage in the 
storm tank: 
  

a) what are the known health risks associated with dilute storm sewage being 
discharged? 

Whilst SWW are not public health experts the Environment Agency (EA) permits are 
established to protect compliance of the receiving waters with the environmental 
standards that are relevant for that water. Where the standards include bacteriological 
standards (e.g. for bathing waters) the EA must take a proportionate approach in the 
control of all sources to help achieve compliance (subject to technical feasibility and/or 
disproportionate cost).   It is important to appreciate that the EAs own investigation work 
into the bacteriological sources in the Torridge catchment indicate that over 90% is as a 
result of diffuse agricultural pollution and not sewage related sources. 

  
b) if ‘in principle only dilute storm sewage will be discharged’, what evidence do you 

have about what actually happens in practice? 
The operation of storm overflows is governed by flow control at the inlet of sewage 
treatment works (STW).  The amount of flow treated by the STW is governed by EA flow 
to treatment policy and is dependent on the population served by the STW.  The 
overflow to the storm tank can only occur when the levels in the sewer at the inlet are 
increased in wet weather above the level of the weir.  As many historic networks are 
combined i.e. they include both the foul flow (that might normally be received in dry 
weather) and surface water (received during rainfall events), the overflow to the storm 
tank will be dilute sewage.  The only time this might not be the case is if the STW inlet 
becomes blocked as a consequence of the STW receiving materials that are 
inappropriately disposed of to sewer (e.g. wet wipes / facial wipes etc.).  Having 
overflowed to the  storm tank, the tank itself will provide both screening and further 
settlement, resulting in a more dilute effluent being discharged. 

  
2. By what date will our rivers and estuary be free of sewage? 
Whilst this might seem to be a desirable objective in reality it is not a realistic target given the 
how sewerage systems and sewage treatment have evolved and the current legal and 
legislative framework that governs such processes.  The centralisation and urbanisation of 
populations has resulted in the need to collect and treat waste, including sewage.  Whilst 
initially this may have simply been piping sewage away from population centre; to discharge 
untreated into rivers and the sea, much has changed since the 1930’s through the 
application of both health and environment standards, resulting in significantly improved 
levels of containment and treatment. 
   
The key principle of protecting environmental compliance is through the setting of standards 
for discharges to minimise their impact on their receiving waters.  EU and domestic 
legislation sets out the environmental standards expected for our rivers and estuaries and 
the Environment Agency (EA), through the setting of permits, establish the quality and 
containment conditions for discharges to help ensure environmental compliance is 
achieved.  It is important within this process that the EA recognises all factors that might 
influence environmental quality (diffuse agriculture, diffuse urban, private sewerage as well 
as public sewerage) and takes a proportionate approach on the management/controls of 
these sources.  All of SWWs discharges are covered by EA discharge permits and their 
performance and compliance is monitored and reported to the EA.  
  
Improvements to discharges are governed by three principle factors; environmental quality 
standards not being met, new or tighter environmental standards and/or  population 
growth/system capacity.  This process is strongly regulated by the  EA and Ofwat (the 
financial regulator), supported by the WaterFuture panel (an independent group of consumer 

Page 111

Agenda Item 9



representatives, customer and community stakeholders), to help ensure any investment 
programme is  economically, socially and environmentally sustainable.                  
  
3. What, in lay terms, are the main factors that constrain the achievement of sewage -free 
watercourses? 
  
The levels of treatment and containment of sewage are principally set through the 
application of EU and domestic environmental legislation.  Whilst it may be technically 
feasible to have sewage-free watercourses it would be cost prohibitive and unsustainable to 
deliver given the levels of infrastructure investment and disturbance necessary  to fully 
separate surface water and foul flows, then contain all flows for treatment and to treat to a 
level that would allow alternative reuse of effluent that did not entail discharge to the 
environment.  The existing regulatory framework provides a strict process for the continued 
sustainable improvement of environmental quality through the controlled and permitted 
discharge of effluent to meet relevant environmental standards. 
  
4. What can TDC do to facilitate the achievement of sewage-free watercourses? 
Whilst sewage-free watercourses may not be an achievable objective there is much that 
Torridge District Council can do to help minimise risks to the sewerage network to ensure 
that sewage can be collected and treated effectively.  One of the key aspects of sewerage 
management is the extent to which surface water enters the network during storm events, 
ultimately taking up sewer capacity.  In many areas this is an historic issue as the system 
was developed as a combined network.  However all new developments should have fully 
separated surface water and foul systems, enforceable under existing planning controls.   
Furthermore helping to identify where surface water may have been inappropriately 
connected to the sewers can help in the remediation/removal of these flows thereby 
improving capacity.  
  
Ensuring the continued free flow of the sewerage system also minimises the risks of 
blockages which can cause networks and treatment processes to discharge prematurely.  
Blockages are caused by two key issues; the disposal of inappropriate materials down the 
sewer and the discharge of fats, oils and grease (FOG), often in combination with each 
other.  Whilst SWW actively campaigns (Love Your Loo 
(http://www.southwestwater.co.uk/index.cfm?articleid=12365&searchkey=love you loo) , 
Think Sink (http://www.southwestwater.co.uk/index.cfm?articleid=13370) , Dirty Dozen) to 
promote appropriate use of the sewerage network it is always helpful if these campaigns are 
also supported by others such local authorities and the EA.  This can be achieved through 
linking materials and websites to appropriate resources and helping customers find these 
resources, to more direct information to food outlets/processors about FOG control during 
environmental health inspections.  
  
5.  The last couple of days there have been utterly foul smells permeating Torrington town.  
It's happened before and I initially thought it was silage but I am informed that it is the 
sewage works. Is this the case, and if so what is the issue/proposed resolution? 
We have been unable to identify any particular reason why there would have been odours 
from the works at this time so it is difficult to determine if the works would have been the 
cause.

Page 112

http://www.southwestwater.co.uk/index.cfm?articleid=12365&searchkey=love
http://www.southwestwater.co.uk/index.cfm?articleid=13370


Atlantic Village Tourist Information
Monthly Statistics 2016

Month April May June July August September October
Days 30 31 30 31 31 30 28

Bideford 180 190 185 225 308 252 170
Westward Ho! & Appledore 70 86 91 102 112 101 80
Torridge based attractions 350 388 369 539 584 369 210
N Devon based attractions 205 260 254 281 393 262 150
Local accommodation 52 54 58 72 87 59 42
Local food and drink 270 259 289 306 332 248 157
Transport (taxi/bus/train) 46 72 69 78 79 69 32
Walking / Cycling 76 86 74 84 98 76 47
Golf/Horse Riding/Fishing 58 64 41 89 87 65 49
Lundy 42 49 43 58 64 48 32
Eden Project 38 44 41 44 49 44 35
Out of area enquiries 64 85 79 95 112 84 71
Newsletters  & Magazines 982 991 1047 1094 1122 992 716
Directions 86 73 84 91 132 79 48
Leaflet  only Enquiries 954 962 976 1048 1284 927 623

Total Tourism Enquiries 3473 3663 3700 4206 4843 3675 2462

Atlantic Village Enquiries 520 576 622 657 674 568 313

Total 3993 4239 4322 4863 5457 4343 2775

Approx number of leaflets taken 7525 7865 8150 8374 8540 6300 2720

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 10



Tourist Information Centre Review

Atlantic Village TIC

All answers below were answered directly by Ruth Benney from Atlantic Village TIC.

Can you describe the range of services you offer at your TIC?

 We have a comprehensive supply of leaflets, brochures, newsletters and maps to give out to 
people and for them to help themselves.

 We answer questions on the local area; give directions and route information to 
holidaymakers as well as out of area destinations.

 We make up over 400 packs of local leaflets and information to give out to accommodation 
providers as no one leaflet provider offers details of every local attraction.

 We source information on places of interest, local businesses, and changes in admission 
prices costs (that are often not shown on leaflets).

 We give out details of local accommodation and places to eat as well as ringing to make 
accommodation enquiries and bookings.

 We sell tickets for the North Devon Show; we actively promote local towns, villages, 
businesses, attractions markets and Pannier markets and give out discount vouchers when 
available to encourage visitors to stay in the local area.

 Weekly orders need to be completed to maintain supplies of leaflets.

How many customers in a year do you service? If possible figures on a monthly basis

It is hard to know for certain exactly how many customers we service as funding only allows for the 
desk to be manned for a limited number of hours each day (Funding is already being reduced in 
2017). However statistics kept for the hours that the desk is manned are attached.

All the leaflets are fully available all the time that Atlantic Village Shopping Centre is open which is  
9.00 – 6.00 on most days, 9.00 – 8.00 on Thursdays and 10.00 – 4.00 on Sundays

What electronic services do you provide? I.e. Websites

There is no funding for providing electronic advertising boards, website or IT usage as there is barely 
enough funding to cover essential costs and the desk, screens, stand etc. have not been replaced for 
15 years.

Are you staffed? I.e. voluntary/permanent/number of each

Staffing is one permanent part time tourism assistant plus one volunteer. The TIC has always been 
open every day for 15 years. That is 7 days a week for seven months of the year, from just before 
Easter to the end of the October half term. The number of hours that the TIC desk is manned is 
flexible according to funding and demand. It has been manned for 4/5 hours on Bank Holidays, 
weekends, and School holidays and during the main summer season. At other times it is manned for 
3 hours on average and longer if the weather is wet as this always increases the footfall hugely.

Page 114



How are you funded?

The organisation is presently funded by four organisations:

 Bideford Town Council
 Devon County Council
 Torridge District Council
 Atlantic Village

What did you use our grants for in the last two fiscal years? What is the impact and value of our 
grant?

The TIC is funded by grants from Atlantic Village, Bideford Town Council, Torridge Tourism 
Association and Torridge District Council. In 2017

In 2017:

            Atlantic Village           £2000

            Bideford Town Council £1000 (reduced from £2000 last year)

            Torridge Tourism         £1500

             Plus TDC                    £1000 (if at 2016 level)

I know that you asked North Devon+ for this information but they did not have the up to date 
position and the person you spoke to doesn’t always get the facts correct (from past experience).

Do you have any future plans for your TIC? I.e. New projects/ideas to improve the services 
provided

In the 2015/16 season despite best efforts to TIC ended up over £300 in debit and I had to ask a local 
attraction to make up the shortfall.

Page 115



Tourist Information Centre Review

Atlantic Village TIC

All answers below were answered directly by Ruth Benney from Atlantic Village TIC.

Can you describe the range of services you offer at your TIC?

 We have a comprehensive supply of leaflets, brochures, newsletters and maps to give out to 
people and for them to help themselves.

 We answer questions on the local area; give directions and route information to 
holidaymakers as well as out of area destinations.

 We make up over 400 packs of local leaflets and information to give out to accommodation 
providers as no one leaflet provider offers details of every local attraction.

 We source information on places of interest, local businesses, and changes in admission 
prices costs (that are often not shown on leaflets).

 We give out details of local accommodation and places to eat as well as ringing to make 
accommodation enquiries and bookings.

 We sell tickets for the North Devon Show; we actively promote local towns, villages, 
businesses, attractions markets and Pannier markets and give out discount vouchers when 
available to encourage visitors to stay in the local area.

 Weekly orders need to be completed to maintain supplies of leaflets.

How many customers in a year do you service? If possible figures on a monthly basis

It is hard to know for certain exactly how many customers we service as funding only allows for the 
desk to be manned for a limited number of hours each day (Funding is already being reduced in 
2017). However statistics kept for the hours that the desk is manned are attached.

All the leaflets are fully available all the time that Atlantic Village Shopping Centre is open which is  
9.00 – 6.00 on most days, 9.00 – 8.00 on Thursdays and 10.00 – 4.00 on Sundays

What electronic services do you provide? I.e. Websites

There is no funding for providing electronic advertising boards, website or IT usage as there is barely 
enough funding to cover essential costs and the desk, screens, stand etc. have not been replaced for 
15 years.

Are you staffed? I.e. voluntary/permanent/number of each

Staffing is one permanent part time tourism assistant plus one volunteer. The TIC has always been 
open every day for 15 years. That is 7 days a week for seven months of the year, from just before 
Easter to the end of the October half term. The number of hours that the TIC desk is manned is 
flexible according to funding and demand. It has been manned for 4/5 hours on Bank Holidays, 
weekends, and School holidays and during the main summer season. At other times it is manned for 
3 hours on average and longer if the weather is wet as this always increases the footfall hugely.

Page 116



How are you funded?

The organisation is presently funded by four organisations:

 Bideford Town Council
 Devon County Council
 Torridge District Council
 Atlantic Village

What did you use our grants for in the last two fiscal years? What is the impact and value of our 
grant?

The TIC is funded by grants from Atlantic Village, Bideford Town Council, Torridge Tourism 
Association and Torridge District Council. In 2017

In 2017:

            Atlantic Village           £2000

            Bideford Town Council £1000 (reduced from £2000 last year)

            Torridge Tourism         £1500

             Plus TDC                    £1000 (if at 2016 level)

I know that you asked North Devon+ for this information but they did not have the up to date 
position and the person you spoke to doesn’t always get the facts correct (from past experience).

Do you have any future plans for your TIC? I.e. New projects/ideas to improve the services 
provided

In the 2015/16 season despite best efforts to TIC ended up over £300 in debit and I had to ask a local 
attraction to make up the shortfall.

Page 117



Tourist Information Centre Review

Holsworthy TIC

Can you describe the range of services you offer at your TIC?

Aside from providing information for the local residents and visitors to the area the Holsworthy TIC 
provide the following:

 Memorial Hall Bookings – As of my visit on the 30th January, the TIC had booked the 
Holsworthy memorial hall every Wednesday bar two for coffee mornings for a variety of 
local clubs. They also make bookings for fitness activities such as Pilates and yoga, and 
events including weddings and funeral teas. 

 Sensory Bus – This service is a regular visitor to the TIC in which is seen as extremely 
beneficial to the service

 Retail – Included in the shop is a gift cabinet which at the time of visit included candles, 
glassware and china. The TIC also sold other items including handmade cards, maps of areas 
within Devon and Cornwall and (cotton) bags.

 Bus Time Table – Assisting visitors with bus times and routes, as well as applying for bus 
passes

 Ridetherubycountry.com – This is a vast resource for visitors to the region. It catalogues:
o List of activities in the area
o Accommodation
o Places to eat and drink
o Arts and Crafts
o Upcoming Events

Currently the TIC is open between 10:00 and 15:00, four days a week during the winter and six days 
a week during the summer. 

How many customers in a year do you service? If possible figures on a monthly basis.

Unfortunately this was not monitored at the TIC. It was explained that they have a counter above 
the door but because no one had ever asked this was not currently utilised at the TIC.  It was advised 
however that should the Council need to refer to these figures in the future that the counter could 
be made operational and we can have access to these reports.

What electronic services do you provide? I.e. Websites

As previously mentioned the TIC currently operates www.ridetherubycountry.com. This is currently 
managed by a volunteer and provides a variety of information to its visitors. 

The TIC have a TV mounted on the wall behind the service desk, this is linked up to a Blu-ray player. 
At present the TV is operated as a monitor which displays images of Holsworthy, transitioning 
between pictures approximately every 30 seconds. 

Page 118

http://www.ridetherubycountry.com/


Are you staffed? I.e. voluntary/permanent/number of each

The TIC is exclusively staffed by volunteers. There are ten volunteers currently at Holsworthy TIC and 
their current hours of operation consist of:

 Four days in the winter period per week , consisting of two staff per day, except 
Wednesdays where they operate with three members of staff

 Six days in the summer period per week , consisting of two staff per day, except Wednesdays 
where they operate with three members of staff

Summer
Wednesday (26*3*5) 390
Remaining Five Days (26*5*3*2) 1300
Number of Volunteers 10
Average Volunteering Hours per week 65
Average Hours (per week/volunteer) 6.5

Winter
Wednesday (26*3*5) 390
Remaining Four Days (26*5*3*2) 780
Number of Volunteers 10
Average Volunteering Hours per week 45
Average Hours (per week/volunteer) 4.5

The above is an approximate figure on the amount of hours worked by each volunteer and the total 
amount of volunteering hours worked at Holsworthy TIC.

How are you funded?

Aside from grants presented to them, the TIC is funded primarily by sales of goods from their office. 
This includes commission from the sale of items from local crafts people, as well as glassware they 
buy in themselves to sell.

There were discussions to use the TV in the office to advertise local businesses which would 
generate extra revenue for the Memorial Hall.

As previously mentioned the TIC currently administers all bookings for the Memorial Hall. The TIC 
should be administering a fee to the Memorial Hall for all bookings taken, however due to the 
financial difficulties currently being experienced at the Memorial Hall this is not occurring. It was 
discussed that when/if the Memorial Hall stabilises their finances then the TIC would charge for their 
administration.

Page 119



What did you use our grants for in the last two fiscal years? What is the impact and value of our 
grant?

The grants provided by Torridge District Council assisted Holsworthy TIC in numerous areas:

 Overheads 
 Insurance
 Maintenance
 Stationary
 Information Leaflets
 Purchasing Stock i.e Glassware in their gift section
 TV and Blu-Ray player
 Volunteer expenses 

Do you have any future plans for your TIC? I.e. New projects/ideas to improve the services 
provided

Holsworthy TIC is planning on expanding on their retail offerings to become more sustainable in the 
future. I enquired into whether there were any other options however it was stated that due to the 
age of volunteers and their abilities, it would be hard to implement any complex ideas without a co-
ordinator to be available at the TIC each day it is open. 

Page 120



Tourist Information Centre Review

Torrington TIC

Can you describe the range of services you offer at your TIC?

The Great Torrington TIC provides a whole host of information and services. These include:

 Brochures – Predominantly these are for attractions in North Devon, however they do cover 
the whole of Devon

 Accommodation Bookings
 Retail – They currently sell maps, local books, souvenirs, postcards and stamps
 Torridge District Council Enquiries – Since the closure of the TDC office in Great Torrington, 

locals have been enquiring with the TIC as to who is best to contact at TDC for their needs.
 Photocopying
 Faxing – Only fax machine available to the general public in Great Torrington
 Public services – Provides the locations of local doctors and hospitals
 Tarka Trail – Information on the location of the Tarka Trail and the areas viewable on each 

route.

What electronic services do you provide? I.e. Websites

The Great Torrington TIC provides a website (http://www.great-torrington.com/) which lists places 
to see within 15km of Torrington. It also uses this website to advertise places to see which earns 
them a small fee from each accommodation. There are also directions for Torrington listed, however 
these are out of date. The website also provides a ‘Contact Us’ section where users can send 
enquiries direct to the TIC.

How are you staffed? I.e. voluntary/permanent/number of each

Currently the Great Torrington TIC has one paid member of staff who is currently paid for 10 hours 
per week. They are currently in charge of co-ordinating the ten volunteers of which all work on 
average three hours per week. 

The opening times of the TIC are relatively consistent, however in the summer their closing times on 
Wednesday, Friday and Saturday are determined by the time of which the TIC Manager leaves. She 
stated that this was usually 14:30.

Summer

Days Opening Times
Monday, Tuesday, Thursday 10:00 – 16:00
Wednesday, Friday, Saturday 10:00 – 14:30

Winter

Days Opening Times
Monday, Tuesday, Thursday 10:00 – 16:00
Wednesday, Friday, Saturday 10:00 – 13:00

Page 121

http://www.great-torrington.com/


How many customers in a year do you service? 

Table A (see final page) demonstrates quite a visible decline in visitor numbers since 2004. The TIC 
believes this to be due to the popularity of smart phones, which does correspond with the launch of 
the iPhone and the continued growth in smartphone popularity. Unfortunately this downward trend 
has so far shown no indication of ceasing with their biggest decrease to date occurring in 2016 (17% 
decrease).

How are you funded?

The Torrington TIC is funded predominantly by the TDC and the Cavalier Trust (?).

What did you use our grants for in the last two fiscal years? What is the impact and value of our 
grant?

As shown in the above image, the total income for the TIC was £7,153.22, of which £4,220 was 
presented by the TDC. Ian Lovell from Great Torrington TIC confirmed that the funds essentially paid 
their wages for the TIC Manager. He then went on to mention that without the grant the TIC would 
not be sustainable, resulting in its closure.

Page 122



Do you have any future plans for your TIC? I.e. New projects/ideas to improve the services 
provided

At present there are no future plans for the TIC. Ian Lovell did explain that in the past there was the 
intention to merge with Great Torrington library, however as the funding was not attained from 
Devon Libraries in time this never came to fruition. 

Page 123



 EXTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2016/2017

Cycle 1 Cycle 2 Cycle 3 Cycle 4 Cycle 5 Cycle 6 Cycle 7 Cycle 8
25 May 2016 6 July 2016 17 Aug 2016 28 Sept 2016 9 Nov 2016 11 Jan 2017 22 Feb 2017 29 Mar 2017

2pm 6pm 2pm 6pm 2pm 6pm 2pm 6pm
External Grants 

Update (JH)

Review of 
Forward Plan 

items (JH)

New TDC 
Community Safety 

Structure (to 
include One 

Bideford) (JH)
Health & 

Wellbeing

New TDC 
Community 

Safety Structure 
(to include One 
Bideford) (JH)

Health & 
Wellbeing

Joint Water 
Quality Task 

Team

Biosphere

Formulate 
questions for 

SWW/DCC/EA

Public Speaking 
Protocol 

South West 
Water 

Devon CC
Environment 

Agency

Ambulance 
response times

(SWAST) 

CAB

ND+ (SK)
Tourist 

Information 
Groups

Grant Review

Blue Light 
Services 

Assessment of 
work carried out 
by Overview & 

Scrutiny

Standing 
Items

Health, 
Wellbeing & 
Social Care

Health, Wellbeing 
& Social Care

Health, 
Wellbeing & 
Social Care

Health, 
Wellbeing & 
Social Care

Health, 
Wellbeing & 
Social Care

Health, 
Wellbeing & 
Social Care

Health, 
Wellbeing & 
Social Care

Health, 
Wellbeing & 
Social Care

New 
Working
Groups

External Grants
Working Group

External Grants
Working Group

External Grants
Working Group

External Grants
Working Group

External Grants
Working Group

External Grants
Working Group

Joint NDC/TDC Council meetings re. water quality and the environment (bi-annual)
Overflow Issues Appledore and Westward Ho! (from 25 March 2015 meeting)
Organisations that are Grant Funded: North Devon+, 

P
age 124

A
genda Item

 13



UPCOMING ITEMS FOR FORWARD PLAN 

Prosperous and Sustainable Economy

1. Transport (buses, Link Road)
2. Education (modern apprenticeships) 
3. Housing (first time home buyers, planning policy, social housing, homelessness)
4. Employment (NEETS, Petroc)
5. Empty buildings
6. Industrial Units and local economy 
7. North Devon +

Stronger, Safer, Healthier Communities 

1. Green deal, fuel poverty
2. Ambulance cover, hospital beds, healthcare providers
3. Burton Art Gallery
4. Pharmacies

Quality Environment

1. Southwest Water (overflow issues and Appledore/Westward Ho)
2. Housing developments and water run off
3. AONB / Biosphere

Effective and Customer Focused Council 

1. Mr Topham – review of O&S (Ext) liaison with external 
bodies

 

P
age 125


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	3 Action List
	8 CCG
	2 STP briefing document
	3 Acute Hospital Services Review
	4 20160125 DVN001 Case for change FINAL DRAFT
	5 2016 11 03 wider Devon STP

	9 SWW
	10 Tourist Information Groups
	Atlantic Village Tourist Information Centre Review Questionnaire
	Great Torrington TIC Visitor Numbers
	Holsworthy Tourist Information Centre Review Questionnaire
	Torrington Tourist Information Centre Review Questionnaire

	13 Consideration Of The Forward Plan 2016/17

